
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

GRANTS PANEL 
________________________________________________ 

 

Thursday, 15 October 2009 at 6.30 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
Committee Room M71, 7th Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 

Crescent, London, E14 2BG 
 
 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair: Councillor Marc Francis  
Vice-Chair:Councillor Abdul Asad   
  
  
Councillor Abdal Ullah 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Councillor Rania Khan 
 

Councillor Anwara Ali, (Lead Member, 
Health & Wellbeing) 
Councillor Oliur Rahman, (Lead Member, 
Employment and Skills) 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 2 Members]. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Zoe Folley, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4877, E-mail: zoe.folley@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

GRANTS PANEL  
 

Thursday, 15 October 2009 
 

6.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Grants 
Panel held on 11th June 2009.  
 

3 - 10  

4. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 

  

 To receive any deputations and petitions.  
 
The deadline for the receipt of any deputations for this 
meeting is  12 noon Friday 9th October 2009. 
 

  

5. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR 
CONSIDERATION  

 

  

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

5 .1 Update on the Youth Opportunity and Youth Capital 
Funds in Tower Hamlets (GP 03/0910)   

 
11 - 22  

5 .2 Review of Mainstream Grants Commissioning (GP 
04/0910)   

 
23 - 50  

6. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS 
CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 

  



 
 
 
 

 SCRUTINY PROCESS 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at its meeting on Tuesday  
3rd November 2009 may scrutinise provisional decisions made in respect of any of the 
reports attached, if it is “called in” by five or more Councillors.  
 
The deadline for “Call-in” is: Friday 23rd  October 2009 (5.00 p.m.) 
 
The deadline for Deputations is: Wednesday 28th October 2009   (5.00p.m)    
 
Councillors wishing to “call-in” a provisional decision, or members of the public wishing 
to submit a deputation request, should contact: 

John Williams  
Service Head Democratic Services  

020 7364 4205 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\2\AI00021251\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  
 

ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 
not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\2\AI00021251\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



GRANTS PANEL, 11/06/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE GRANTS PANEL 
 

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON THURSDAY, 11 JUNE 2009 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM M71, 7TH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
  
Councillor Marc Francis (Lead Member, Housing and Development) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed (Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships) 
Councillor Rania Khan (Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships) 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Lead Member, Children's Services) 

 
Other Councillors Present: 
  
 
 
Officers Present: 
 
Dinar Hossain – (Interim Head of Youth and Connextions 

Services, Children’s Services) 
Mario Leo – (Head of Legal Services - Environment) 
Brenda Doku – (Community Resources Contracts & Grants 

Officer, Children's Services) 
Zoe Folley – (Committee Officer, Chief Executive's) 

 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009/10  
 
The Democratic Services Officer, opened the meeting and requested 
nominations for the election of Chair of the Panel for the remainder of the 
Municipal Year 2009/10.  Councillor Ahmed nominated Councillor Francis for 
the position.  There being no further nominations, it  was: 
 
Resolved 
 
That Councillor M. Francis be elected Chair of the Grants Panel for the 
remainder of the Municipal Year 2009/10 
 
 

COUNCILLOR M. FRANCIS IN THE CHAIR 
 

 
 

2. ELECTION OF VICE- CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009/10  
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



GRANTS PANEL, 11/06/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

The Chair requested nominations for the election of Vice-Chair of the Panel 
for the remainder of the Municipal Year 2009/10.  Councillor Ahmed 
nominated Councillor Asad for the position.  There being no further 
nominations, it was: 
 
Resolved  
 
That Councillor A. Asad be elected Vice - Chair of the Grants Panel for the 
remainder of the Municipal Year 2009/10. 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor A. Ullah,  Lead 
Member for Cleaner, Safer Greener.  
 
Resolved  
 
That the apologies for absence be noted. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor O Ahmed declared a personal interest in Agenda item 8.1 “ Youth 
Service Summer Project Grants 2009” (GP 002/910). The declaration was 
made on the basis that the item contained a recommendations relating to the 
Colloden Bangladeshi Cultural Association and Councillor Ahmed was a 
member of the Association. 
 
Councillor M Francis declared a prejudicial interest  in Agenda item 8.1  
“Youth Service Summer Project Grants 2009” (GP 002/910). The declaration 
was made on the basis that the report contained applications from the Old 
Ford Housing Association located in Bow East and Councillor Francis was 
one of the Ward Councillors for Bow East ward. 
 
Councillor A Asad declared a prejudicial interest in Agenda item 8.1 
”Youth Service Summer Project Grants 2009” (GP 002/910). The declaration 
of interest was made on the basis that the report contained applications from:  

• Bijoy Youth Group  
• Ensign Youth Group 
• Martineau Estate  

and Councillor Asad was a paid employee of the Bishops Challoner School, 
Shadwell which provided youth services to the projects.  
 
Councillor R Khan declared a personal interest in Agenda item 8.1  ”Youth 
Service Summer Project Grants 2009” (GP 002/910). The declaration of 
interest was made on the basis that the report contained applications from  

• The Ocean Somali Community Association 
• Streets of Growth  

and Councillor Khan was a Trustee of the Kingsley Hall in Bow which the 
above applicants used.  
 
Noted.  

Page 4



GRANTS PANEL, 11/06/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
 

5. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The Chair MOVED and it was: -   
 
Resolved:  
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Grants Panel held 
on 19th  March 2009 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record 
of the proceedings. 
 
Matters Arising  
 
In considered the minutes, Councillor Francis, (Chair) asked for further 
information on the following matters:  

 
(a) MSG  Commissioning – Adults Health and Wellbeing  

 
(Older People Lunch Club Services) -  Page 11 of minutes  

 
• Strafford Friendship Club  - further information on the number of 

participants;    
• East London Chinese Community Centre, Community of Refugees 

from Vietnam (East London) – (unsuccessful due to duplication)  -  
clarification of appeals process.  

 
(b) MSG Commissioning Development and Renewal –  Page 9 
 
In relation to the TH Community Transport Scheme/Volunteer Centre TH: - 
(That they be awarded £20,000/10,000 respectively for a 3 month period only, 
Resolution 2, Page 9), Councillor Francis questioned when this funding would 
draw to a close? What provision was there for them now? 
 
In response, it was agreed that the requests for information raised by 
Councillor Francis would be put to the relevant Services for a response and 
that this be reported back to Councillor Francis.  
 
ACTION: Z Folley, Committee Officer, Chief Executives.  
 
In discussing the applications considered at the meeting, Members raised a 
number of concerns as follows:  
 
Councillor Asad commented that:  
 

• he had received queries from long standing organisations whose 
applications were unsuccessful;  

• A number of organisations missed out on funding/were unable to apply 
due to the new application process. For example, two groups were 
excluded in his ward; 

Page 5



GRANTS PANEL, 11/06/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

• If small groups were experiencing problems in applying because of the 
new arrangements, this needed to be addressed.  Considered that they 
should be offered support to ensure they could apply in future;   

• That the Grants Panel should receive a detailed report on the MSG 
Commissioning process covering, how it worked, the appeals process. 
Considered that the appeals process was key. 

 
Councillor Kahn considered that:   

• Some of the smaller groups, (for example the Somali Women’s 
Groups) did not have access to the technology needed to apply on line 
and, because of this, was at a disadvantage;  

• Stressed the need to focus on the lessons learnt from the process and 
that the problem of groups being excluded due to the new process  be 
addressed.  

 
B Doku (Community Resources Contracts & Grants Officer, Children’s 
Service) undertook to take these issues back to the Directorates concerned. 
 
Accordingly it was Agreed that a detailed report would be submitted to 
Members on the new Mainstream Grant Commissioning Process covering  

 
• Review of process; -  feedback on operation of process to date;  
• how the small and medium size community/voluntary organisations 

are involved in the process;    
• Information on the organisations either left out or applied but were not 

considered because of the newly introduced online system.  
 
Councillor Francis (Chair) asked about the Grants Appeals Process and that 
the process be reported back to him.  
 
Ms Doku reported that under the new Commissioning model, there was no 
longer an appeals process for MSG decisions.  
 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS & PETITIONS  
 
The Committee Officer advised that the Assistant Chief Executive had 
received no requests for deputations or petitions in respect of the business 
contained in the agenda. 
 

7. GRANTS PANEL TERMS OF REFERENCE (GP 001/910)  
 
The Chair introduced the report which set out the terms of reference; 
membership; quorum and future dates of the Grants Panel for the Municipal 
Year 2009/10 and then MOVED the recommendation set out in the report and 
it was:- . 
 
Resolved:  
 

Page 6



GRANTS PANEL, 11/06/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

That the Terms of Reference, membership and quorum for the Grants Panel 
as set out in Appendix A of the report (GP/001/910) be noted.  
 
 

8. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

8.1 Youth Service Summer Project Grants 2009 (GP 002/910)  
 
Dinar Hossain  (Interim Head of Youth and Connextions Services) presented 
the report and summarised the salient points contained therein.   The report 
asked the Grants Panel to consider and approve applications in respect of 
Summer Grants Projects for 2009.  
 
The Grants Panel decided that the applications would be considered in order 
of LAP blocks. A discussion then following where the following questions/ 
points were raised:  
 
Councillor Asad queried the proposal to spend £15,000 on the publicity for 
Summer Projects. He considered that this budget should be reduced. And that 
a budget of £10,000 would be more appropriate. The balance of £5,000 
should be added to that for individual projects and, in the first instance, 
reserved for applications from smaller organisations.  
 
Accordingly, Councillor Asad proposed additional recommendations to that 
set out in the report for the consideration of the Grants Panel as follows:   
 

 “ That the publicity budget for the Summer Grants Projects Scheme be 
revised downwards from £15,000 to £10,000;  

 
That Officers in consultation with the Chair and the Vice - Chair be 
authorised to determined funding priorities for the publicity budget of 
£10,000, and to facilitate this, provide details of the publicity 
programme; and 

 
That the sum left unallocated as a result of resolution 5. above (£5,000) 
be added to the budget for individual Summer Projects. That Officers in 
consultation with the Chair and the Vice - Chair be authorised to 
allocate this funding and that in the first instance it be awarded to small 
organisations, for summer activities, subject to compliance with the 
funding criteria for the scheme”.  

 
In relation to the Boundary Community School Summer Project ( Page 39 – 
40 of the agenda) officers clarified that their application was unsuccessful due 
to incomplete details. The application only included two days of activity when 
the minimum number of days for funding was 4.   
 
In reply Councillor Asad commented  
 

• that the school provided a range of leisure activities for their pupils;  

Page 7



GRANTS PANEL, 11/06/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

• given the lack of leisure provision/ problems with overcrowding in the 
area, their project should be supported.  

 
Councillor Asad therefore requested that their application be reviewed subject 
to the provision of complete programme details.  
 
Accordingly Councillor Asad proposed  an additional recommendation to that 
set out in the report for the consideration of the Grants Panel as follows: 
 

“That the decision in respect of the Boundary Community School for 
their BSC Summer Project, be deferred subject to further information 
being sought and obtained (to clarify number of days of activity - 
complete programme details). That, subject to the receipt of this 
information,  the final decision regarding the application be deferred to 
officers in consultation with the Chair and Vice – Chair for 
determination”.  

 
Councillor Asad left the room for the consideration of the applications from 
LAP 4 based projects (Time being 7:10pm). 
 
Councillor Asad rejoined the meeting at 7:15pm.  
 
Councillor Francis (Chair) vacated the Chair and left the room for the 
consideration of the applications from LAP 5 based projects. (7:15pm). 
Councillor Asad (Vice –Chair) took the Chair for this item.  

 
Councillor A. Asad in the Chair 

 
Councillor Francis rejoined the meeting at 7:20pm  

 
Councillor M. Francis in the Chair 

 
The Grants Panel also requested that, in future, when key details are missing 
from applications, the applicant be contacted to gain this information before 
submission to the Grants Panel.  
 
Councillor Francis (Chair) then Moved the recommendations as contained in 
the report taking account of the amendments proposed by Councillor Asad 
and it was:- 
 
Resolved:  
 
(1) That the proposals for the allocation of grant aid for Summer Project 

Grants in 2009 as summarised in Appendix A of the report (GP 
002/910) for LAP  areas 1 - 3, 6 –8 and the Boroughwide  projects,  
with detailed Assessments in Appendix B, be agreed subject to the 
following:    

 
• That the decision in respect of the Boundary Community School for 

their BSC Summer Project, be deferred subject to further information 
being sought and obtained (to clarify number of days of activity - 

Page 8



GRANTS PANEL, 11/06/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

complete programme details). That, subject to the receipt of this 
information,  the final decision regarding the application be deferred to 
officers in consultation with the Chair and Vice – Chair for 
determination.  

 
Councillor A Asad left the room for the consideration of the applications from 
LAP 4 based projects (Time being 7:10pm) 

 
(2) That the proposals for the allocation of grant aid for Summer Project 

Grants in 2009 as summarised in Appendix A of the report (GP 
002/910) for LAP 4 area, with detailed Assessments in Appendix B, be 
agreed;  

 
Councillor A Asad rejoined the meeting at 7:15pm.  

 
Councillor Francis (Chair) vacated the Chair and left the room for the 
consideration of the applications from LAP 5 based projects. (7:15pm). 
Councillor Asad (Vice –Chair) took the Chair for this item.  

 
Councillor A. Asad in the Chair 

 
(3) That the proposals for the allocation of grant aid for Summer Project 

Grants in 2009 as summarised in Appendix A of the report (GP 
002/910) for LAP 5 area, with detailed Assessments in Appendix B, be 
agreed.  

 
Councillor Francis rejoined the meeting at 7:20pm  

 
Councillor M. Francis in the Chair 

 
(4). That the publicity budget for the Summer Grants Projects Scheme be 

revised downwards from £15,000 to £10,000;  
 
(5). That Officers in consultation with the Chair and Vice – Chair be 

authorised to determined funding priorities for the publicity budget of 
£10,000; and to facilitate this, provide details of the publicity 
programme; and 

 
(6). That the sum left unallocated as a result of resolution 5. above, totalling 

£5,000, be added to the budget for individual Summer Projects. That 
Officers in consultation with the Chair and the Vice - Chair be 
authorised to allocate this funding and that it be awarded in the first 
instance to small organisations, for summer activities, subject to 
compliance with the funding criteria for the scheme.  

 
9. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 
There was no other urgent unrestricted business to be considered under this 
item.   
 

The meeting ended at 7.20 p.m.  

Page 9



GRANTS PANEL, 11/06/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

 
 

Chair, Councillor Abdal Ullah 
Grants Panel 

 

Page 10



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 1 

Committee: 
 
Grants Panel 

Date: 
 
15 October 2009 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: Agenda 
Item: 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director of Children’s Services 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Dinar Hossain, Head of Youth and 
Connexions Services 

Title:  
 
Update on the Youth Opportunity and Youth 
Capital Funds in Tower Hamlets 
 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report updates Members on the implementation of the Youth Opportunity 

and Youth Capital Funds in Tower Hamlets in 2009/10. 
 
1.2 Appendix A contains the list of the projects funded by the Youth Opportunity and 

Capital Funds Grants Panel from 1 April to 30 September 2009 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Grants Panel is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Note the report on the implementation of the Youth Opportunity and Youth 

Capital Funds in 2009/10. 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 2000 (Section 97) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

Brief description of “back ground papers” Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 

Youth Matters: Next Steps 
 

Antonia Dixey, 020 7364 3092 
Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 
Crescent, London E14 2BG 

Youth Opportunity Fund and Youth Capital 
Fund Guidance Notes 

Antonia Dixey, 020 7364 3092 
Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 
Crescent, London E14 2BG 

     

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 11



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 2 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 ‘Youth Matters: Next Steps’ challenged Local Authorities to put young people 

themselves in control of the things to do and places to go in their area.  It 
proposed putting buying power directly in the hands of young people by providing 
an ‘Opportunity Fund’ and ‘Capital Fund’ in each Local Authority to be spent on 
local projects that young people want.  Following an initial pilot of the funds from 
2006/08, the DCSF has made provision for the funds for 2008/2011.  Tower 
Hamlets has been allocated additional Youth Opportunity Fund funding through 
the Mayor’s Offer in 2008/10.     
 

3.2 The Government made available a budget in each Local Authority to be spent at 
young people’s discretion on projects to improve things to do and places to go in 
their area.  They proposed the Youth Opportunity Fund (YOF) to enable young 
people to establish their own small-scale projects, such as renting space in a 
community centre to put on activities, establishing a neighbourhood council or 
youth café, or running sports leagues and tournaments.  They also established a 
line of capital funding over two years from April 2006, called the Youth Capital 
Fund (YCF), to enable Local Authorities to develop, in conjunction with young 
people, new approaches to strategic investment in youth facilities. 

 
3.3 The aim of the Youth Capital Fund is to “provide a discrete capital budget to be 

spent on what young people want and need”.  The DCSF guidance states that “it 
is designed to work in tandem with the YOF to develop projects which contain 
both a capital and revenue element, noting that YOF must not be used to meet 
any ongoing costs associated with capital investment because of the risks 
around sustainability.  Similarly YCF is not a substitute for mainstream capital 
funding and wherever possible should be matched from other sources”.    

 
3.5 Youth Matters stated that Local Authorities, building on existing practice, may 

adopt different approaches, but the key aim was for young people themselves to 
decide how the fund could be spent.  In particular, the DCSF guidance stresses 
that YCF is “to be spent on what young people want and need” and one of the 
grant conditions is that “arrangements for implementing YCF should allow for the 
active involvement of young people, with particular emphasis on those who are 
disadvantaged, in all aspects of planning, delivery, monitoring and evaluation of 
the YCF.  This involvement should be developed with a view to mainstreaming it 
into capital and asset management more generally in the authority”. 

 
 3.6 In 2009/10 Tower Hamlets has been allocated £427,000 for the Youth 

Opportunity Fund, £125,320 additional Youth Opportunity Fund funding through 
the Mayor’s Offer and £183,600 for the Youth Capital Fund.  

 
 
 

Page 12



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 3 

4. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE FUNDS  
 
4.1 Officers from Youth and Connexions Services worked closely with young people 

to develop and administer the funds.  We also worked in partnership with Youth 
Bank Tower Hamlets, drawing on their knowledge and experience of youth led 
grant-making.  They have played a fundamental role in training the panel 
members and supporting young people to make applications.  

 
4.2 Based on an evaluation of the Funds carried out in February 2009 and 

recommendations from Members’ Grants Panel in October 2008, the 
implementation of both the Youth Opportunity and Youth Capital Funds has 
included: 
• Setting a maximum grant size – of £500-£5,000 for Youth Opportunity Fund 

projects and £5000-£10,000 for local Youth Capital Fund projects; 
• Increasing the opportunities for young people to get involved in grant making 

– by training an additional 24 young people in grant making in May 2009; 
• Ensuring a fair distribution of grants across the borough – by allocating 

specific amounts of funding per paired LAP area; 
• Improving the speed of grant-making – by having set deadlines for 

applications to the Funds and reducing the time of the full process to 10 
weeks from application to decision; 

• Increasing the number of groups monitored – by increasing this from 10% in 
2006/08 to 30% in 2009/10; and 

• Only awarding grants to organisations that have completed the Youth and 
Connexions Services registration scheme.  Additional information has been 
sought from organisations offered funding to ensure it is used appropriately. 

 
4.3 The Youth Opportunity and Youth Capital Fund panel were recruited from across 

the borough and have received accredited training in grant-making.  There are 
representatives from each LAP area and a good balance of young people 
experienced in delivery of the Funds in previous years and those new to the 
process.  Some of the young people have now given over 500 hours of their time 
as volunteers and should be commended for their huge contribution to the 
community. 

 
4.4 The process for distributing the Youth Opportunity Fund was as follows: 

The Panel recommended that we would have three rounds of funding: 
 
• Round 1: May 29 – July 29 
• Round 2: July 31 - September 30 
• Round 3: October 2 – December 2 

 
Applications were sought through a series of East End Life adverts and targeted 
recruitment to marginalised and disadvantaged groups across the borough 
including but not exclusive of: Connexions; Young Carers; Looked After Young 

Page 13



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 4 

People; Travellers; Asylum seekers; third sector Youth Offending Team; Youth 
Inclusion Team; disabled young people and the Somalian community 
 
Successful applications would be granted 70% of the grant payment to start their 
project. Upon completion of projects, participants are asked to submit an 
evaluation form to release the further 30%.  
 
A breakdown of costs per funding round and LAP area can be found below: 
 
 LAP 1 + 2 

 
LAP 3 + 4 LAP 5 + 6 LAP 7 + 8 TOTAL 

Round 1 
 

14,500 14,500 14,500 14,500 58,000 
Round 2 
 

36,250 36,250 36,250 36,250 145,000 
Round 3 
 

21,750 21,750 21,750 21,750 87,000 
 
4.5 The panel intended that the Youth Capital Fund would be allocated alongside the 

Youth Opportunity Fund, in line with the grant limits established in 4.2.  However 
it became clear in May 2009 that allocating the full capital amount would be 
extremely difficult if only local applications were funded due to the low number of 
applications received.  The panel therefore agreed to allocate the majority of the 
Youth Capital Fund on the following basis:    
• Supporting one capital development in each LAP area up to the value of 

£20,000.  If no suitable application was received in a particular LAP the panel 
aimed to withhold some of the available funding to allocate to a specific 
project where a need has been identified; 

• All projects required to have some match funding from other sources; 
• Any remaining funding to be used for smaller developments, such as 

signage, lighting and capital equipment.  However, the smallest ‘capital’ 
applications, for goods which are not depreciable, should be treated as Youth 
Opportunity Funding.  Applications which are genuinely for capital, costing 
£5000 - £10,000, should continue to be seen on a paired-LAP basis.  The 
Panel also has oversight of grants for significant equipment purchases; and 

• Ensure that there is good project management support for groups to develop 
their schemes.  Our experience with the NRF/LPSA funded schemes were 
that groups struggled to spend their funding, secure value for money, 
complete their schemes to time and develop their programme of subsequent 
activities.  Strong project management is required to support the groups, 
receive and approve quotes and monitor progress. 

 
4.5 The process for distributing the Youth Capital Fund was therefore as follows: 

• The fund was widely promoted and guidance provided for organisations on 
ensuring young people’s involvement in developing applications for this 
funding stream; 

Page 14



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 5 

• There was a public call for expressions of interest from organisations and 
young people and an opportunity was offered for all voluntary and community 
organisations to submit proposals for funding; 

• Tower Hamlets in partnership with Youthbank Tower Hamlets worked 
proactively with identified groups where there was a need to help them 
develop strong applications, rather than wait and hope for them to apply.  A 
number of potential schemes were identified for development based on 
existing capital programmes, a building audit undertaken of all Youth and 
Connexions Services contracted provision and from previous Youth 
Opportunity Fund applications received. 

 
4.6 The Youth Opportunity and Youth Capital Fund panel members worked on a set 

of criteria for the Funds, based on the DCSF guidance notes and local strategic 
priorities and agreed the following criteria for the funds: 
• Genuinely comes from young people’s ideas, and that the application booklet 

was completed by young people; 
• Includes a wide range of young people, particularly those who are 

marginalised or disadvantaged; 
• Helps and benefits the local community; 
• Helps young people achieve something positive;  
• Accredits young people – that they get a qualification or nationally recognised 

certificate for their participation in the project; 
• Helps bring communities and different young people together; 
• Helps young people to achieve one of the Every Child Matters outcomes; 
• Provides more places to go and things to do for young people; and 
• Is supported by an organisation with a track record of working successfully 

with young people. 
 
5. PROJECTS SUPPORTED 
 
5.1 In the period from April 2009 – September 2009, 73 YOF applications for funding 

were being considered.  Of these: 
 

• 21 grants have been approved; 
• 22 applications have failed at either initial assessment or panel stage; 
• 0 groups have failed to arrive at panel on two or more occasions and have 

been asked to resubmit applications; and 
• 0 decisions have been deferred awaiting further information from the 

applicant groups. 
 
5.2 A more detailed breakdown of the applications is in the table below: 
 

 YOF YCF TOTAL 
Number of applications for grants 73 19 92 
Number of grants approved 21 10 31 

Page 15



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 6 

Application failed at either initial assessment or 
panel stage 

22 6 28 
Applicant group failed to arrive at panel on two or 
more occasions (and have therefore been asked to 
resubmit application 

0 0 0 

Decision deferred by panel awaiting further 
information from applicant group 

0 0 0 
Application received and awaiting presentation to 
panel 

22 + round 
3 

0 
 

22 + 
round 3 

 
5.3 Appendix A contains a list of all projects supported through the Youth 

Opportunity and Youth Capital Funds from April - September 2009. 
 
6. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
6.1 The funding for the Youth Opportunity Fund (£427,000) and Youth Capital Fund 

(£183,600) is fully funded via grant from the Department for Children, Schools 
and Families.  Additional Youth Opportunity funding (£125,320) is fully funded via 
grant from the London Development Agency.  This is released to the Local 
Authority in 2 tranches, one at the start of each financial year and the other at 6 
months, on completion of a satisfactory report back to Government Office for 
London. 

 
6.2 Financial management of the funds is restricted by the conditions attached to 

each grant by the DCSF and practice is consistent with these requirements. 
 
7. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
 
7.1 The arrangements in Tower Hamlets are consistent with the Guidance issued by 

the Department for Children, Schools and Families and paragraphs 3.1-3.6 of this 
report provide details of the Government conditions the Council will be required 
to meet in order to access the available funds. 

 
7.2  Although there are no immediate legal issues arising from this report it will be 

essential that careful monitoring is undertaken of any grants made to applicants 
in order to ensure that the Council is properly protected in its administrative role. 

 
8. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Youth work aims to make a significant contribution toward realising equal 

opportunities.  The arrangements for the implementation of the funds seek to 
ensure that all young people have equality of opportunity and have access to the 
funds.  Specific work has been done in implementing the funds to ensure the 
involvement of disadvantaged and marginalized young people and those 
traditionally underrepresented in youth work settings. 

 

Page 16



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 7 

9. ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Youth work aims to tackle poverty and to engage young people who are at risk of 

social and economic exclusion.  The arrangements for the implementation of the 
funds seek to ensure that the needs of disadvantaged young people are 
appropriately met. 

 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1 There are no direct sustainable action for a greener environment implications 

arising from this report.  However, a priority of the youth work curriculum is to 
develop young people’s global and environmental awareness and some of 
applications for funds have contributed to this. 

 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1 To ensure that risks associated with the funds are well managed a 

comprehensive monitoring and reporting process has been established.  It has 
been identified that strong project management is essential for quality delivery 
of the projects.    

 
11.2 In the event that funded organisations are not able to deliver the projects we will 

identify other partners that can support delivery of the projects or alternative 
projects. 

Page 17



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 8 

Appendix A 
 
Newark Globe FC 
The project idea is to further develop a newly created football team in the Globe Town 
area. This activity will encourage other young people to get involved in active sports and 
competitions.   
 
Attlee Youth Jam 
The project idea is to develop a chill out zone within the youth club specifically for those 
who are aged 13+.  This area would be used as a relaxation area as well as a space for 
getting support for school/college work, job support/placements.   
 
Spitalfields Boys Youth Project 
The project idea is to develop a youth club specifically for boys to be held at the 
Hanbury Centre. The applicants also state that they wish to acquire funds for a 
residential trip. 
 
Somali Girls in Action 
The project idea is Somali girls to create a short film which will explore the cultural life of 
the Somali community and expectations of Somali girls.  The film will also include 
Somali comedy both in Somali and translated in English 
 
Redcoat Youth Project – Redcoat Youth Restoration Project   
The project idea is to restore Redcoat Youth Project in a building as the youth project 
has been closed for the last 5 years. A building has been identified and the applicant is 
asking for assistance with purchasing of equipment. 
 
New Expressions – Youth Communications Project   
The project idea is to provide a Communications training course for girls with the aim of 
helping young people to communicate more effectively by understanding different 
methods of communication. 
 
Taster of Football Coaching (Part 2) Project   
The project idea is to provide football coaching sessions twice weekly.  Participants will 
then be able to take part in the SNC Youth Football League taking place during winter 
through summer. 
 
Your identity as a young Bangladeshi in Britain Project   
The project idea is to work with BBC Radio Jockeys to develop a programme entitled 
‘Your identity as a young Bangladeshi in Britain’. Young People and the BBC Team will 
plan out a series of events to include group consultation, workshops on research and 
findings on young Bangladeshi in Britain, using interview techniques and recordings.  
 
Off the streets  
The project Idea is to set up an area within SYC for young people to receive help and 
assistance on receiving with looking for employment   and career opportunities during 

Page 18



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 9 

the day. During the evening it will be an area for young people to chill out or do their 
homework.   
 
Girls Club 
The project idea is to further develop activities at the newly created girls club at Urban 
Base. Proposed activities include an 8-week art project; learn how to cook projected 
associated day trips to art projects and a restaurant kitchen  
 
Multi Youth Bow 
The project idea is to develop a safe and supervised meeting place for local young 
people who will offer educational activities, indoor and outdoor games. This will take 
place at Multi Youth Centre, Roman Road in Bow.  
 
Sister Hood 
The project Idea is to connect social excluded Somali Girls especially new-comers into 
the community. This will be done by encouraging girls to work on a fashion design 
project combining traditional Somali fashion with western influences. This will take place 
at the Multi Youth Centre.  
 
Aberfeldy Youth Music Project  
The project idea is to further develop an existing music project to create a vocal training 
programme.  
 
Stars of the Future  
The idea is to produce and film a mini drama using members of the club to direct, 
produce and act in film as well as taking on roles such as make up artist and costume 
design.  
 
Climbing Club  
The project Idea is to have a rock climbing training by attending the climbing club after 
school then using those rock climbing skills on a residential which will be open to young 
people from variety of schools  
 
Olympic Sailing group 
The project Idea is to have 8 training sailing sessions in London then go on a residential 
trip to Essex and sail out on the open see 
 
Grassroots Orchestra  
The project Idea is to encourage local young people to learn to play musical 
instruments, form a Grassroots Band and host a musical event on the Aberfeldy estate.  
 
Out ‘n’ about  
The project Idea is to get a group of young people together to manage and organise 
trips for other young people in the Limehouse area. Many young people have been 
outside Tower Hamlets so it is hope that the excursions will widen their perspectives. 
 

Page 19



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 10 

The Clean Up Project 
The project idea is to redecorate the youth centre and to buy new furniture in order to 
facilitate future activities.  It is proposed that the young people will participate in 
decorating the club. 
.  
Café Reconnect 
The project idea is refurbish and redecorate the Café Reconnect Centre on St. Paul’s 
Way in order that young people are able to run the café and elements of the centre (with 
the assistance of youth leaders).  At the moment the Centre is only open two hours a 
day at lunchtimes.  After refurbishment, it is hoped that the opening hours can be 
extended to six hours a day and also open at weekends. 
 
Caxton Hall Late Night Project 
The project idea is to make the youth club more appealing by upgrading the premises 
by improving access for disabled users, create a safer environment by installing better 
outdoor lighting and cutting back overgrown bushes and mending the perimeter fence 
as well as general painting and decorating of the interior. 
 
The Tenants and Residents Association will also use the building. 
 
Fair Trade Tuck Shop 
The project idea is to create and build a secure space and breakfast bar within St 
Andrews Wharf to enable the establishment of a fair trade tuck shop selling healthy and 
drinks for young people attending the youth centre and other people within the 
community.  Young people will man the tuck shop as volunteers.  Any profit generated 
will go towards the young people’s fund for future projects. 
 
Music Space Capital Build 
The project idea is to convert areas of the Brady Centre into rehearsal rooms for bands 
and young musicians and to create accessible recording facilities as the space currently 
being used is not ideal for such purposes. 
 
Concordia Centre Youth Development Project 
The project idea is to develop Concordia Community Centre into a Multi purpose youth 
centre.  Three Somali organisations currently use the facility.  These organisations 
would like to make structural changes to the building in order to use space more 
effectively in order to deliver more activities and training programmes for larger groups 
as currently they have to hire other venues for some youth activities. 
 
Helping Achieve Youth Ambitions 
The project idea is to refurbish and renovate Collingwood Hall in order to make greater 
use of the space available.  An area that is currently disused has been earmarked as an 
IT suite.  The application states that improvements are also necessary in the kitchen 
area to increase access for disabled users and flooring in the toilets and common 
hallways need to be replaced as they are currently in a bad state. 
 

Page 20



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 11 

The Tenants and Residents Association also use this building 
 
Osmani Capital Redevelopment 
The project idea is to purchase fixtures, fittings and equipment for the new youth centre 
being constructed at the Osmani Trust.  This project forms part of a larger scheme 
which consists of a £4.4m redevelopment of the site (funded by LBTH) and 
reconstruction of a new Centre for the Osmani Trust.  The new building will incorporate 
a gym, meeting rooms, IT suite, cafeteria, TV room, full disabled access. 
 
Late Night Opening B Studio 
The project idea is to provide late night opening of the B music studio for young people 
to gain support from a qualified sound engineer but cannot afford to pay for time in the 
studio. 
 
Duke of Edinburgh 
The project idea is to buy equipment in order that participants to the youth centre are 
able to take part in aspects of the Duke of Edinburgh award scheme (particularly going 
on expeditions).   
 
Panna and Outreach 
The project idea is to get a Panna Cage for the youth centre to benefit the Street Sports 
project and will also be used in mini football tournaments, training programmes and 
sessions.  The project also wishes to purchase bicycles and walkie-talkies for outreach 
detached sports work. 
 
Mile End East Senior Provision (Café Reconnect) 
The project idea is to create a football team for under-privileged young people in the 
Mile End east area. It is hoped that the football team will be a diversion from negative 
influences affecting local youths, such as gang violence and drug abuse as well as 
encouraging healthy lifestyles. 
 
ROOTS 
The project idea is to develop a football team as a distraction from gang warfare. 
 
Youth Leadership 
The project idea is to develop a youth leadership programme which will take place one 
evening a week for six weeks.  The programme will cover Effective Leadership, 
Motivation, Influencing Others and Self Expression.  It is hoped that this project will help 
participants to improve poor inter-personal skills. 
 
Mulberry Mini Model UN 
The project idea is to run a Model United Nations Conference in December 2009 for 
students across London to discuss the elimination of landmines with Mulberry Mini UN 
acting as the conference Secretariat. 
 
CFC 

Page 21



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\6\2\AI00021266\091015YOFYCFreportforgrantspanelv0120.doc 12 

The project idea is to develop a football team for the Shadwell Area as a way of 
encouraging young people not to be drawn into a life of crime or commit ASB. 
 
Building and horticultural improvement 
The project idea is to refurbish the current office in Stepney which is in a dilapidated 
state in order to be able to restart the One to One Support with future careers and CV 
building exercises with volunteers from the East London Business Alliance as well as 
carry out a number of workshops and courses to aid self improvement. 
 

Page 22



1 1 

Committee: 
 
Grants Panel 
 

Date: 
 
15th October 
2009 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 
 
 

Report No: 
 
(GP 
04/0910) 

Agenda 
Item: 

Report of:  
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating officer(s) Jon Underwood, 
Everett Haughton and Hilary Hughes – 
Strategy and Performance 
 

Title:  
 
Review of Mainstream Grants 
Commissioning 
 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 At the meeting of the grants panel held on Thursday, 11 June 2009 the Grants 

Panel requested that a detailed report on the Mainstream Grants Commissioning 
Process be submitted to their October meeting.  

 
1.2 It was agreed that a detailed report would be prepared on the new 

commissioning process covering the following 
� Review of the new arrangements - feedback on operation of the process to 

date -  review of key issues  
� How the small and medium size community / voluntary organisations 

are involved in the process 
� Information on the organisations either left out or applied but were not 

considered because of the newly introduced online system.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 The Grants Panel is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 To agree the proposed process improvements contained within the report and 

recommend them to Cabinet. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Funding arrangements for 2009/10 and onwards were approved by Cabinet on 1 

August 2007, in a report entitled ‘Priorities and Arrangements for Mainstream 
Grants 2008-2009’. Members approved proposals that moved the programme to 
a commissioning-based approach of allocating mainstream grant funding. 

 
3.2 The intention of moving to a commissioning-based approach of allocation was to 

strengthen the integrity, transparency and fairness of the process and ensure 
resources were distributed and used more effectively and efficiently. 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 23



2 2 

 
 
4. OVERVIEW OF THE COMMISSIONING PROCESS 
 
 Rationale for Moving to Commissioning of Mainstream Grants 
 
4.1 In line with the borough’s Commissioning Code of Practice, the change to a 

commissioning approach for Mainstream Grants aimed to ensure that: 
� Services are available to those who need them 
� Priorities and outcomes are better informed and more specific 
� Funding is focused on the most effective ways of meeting needs; and that 
� Resources are distributed and used efficiently and equitably 

 
Consultation, Support and involvement of Third Sector partners 
 

4.2 The directorates responsible for the different Mainstream Grants funding streams 
organised 8 workshops with prospective applicants to enable them to respond to 
the proposed changes and feedback on service need. In addition to the 
workshops an open consultation session took place at the Brady Centre on 21st 
July 2008. 54 people representing 47 organisations attended this event. 

 
4.3 As a result of feedback received during the consultation period, the TH3 Event 

(formerly the Funder Fair) on the 6th November focused on addressing the issues 
that local groups had identified. This included workshops on: understanding the 
application process, completing the form, quality assurance, working in 
partnership and costing projects. A comprehensive FAQ document was also 
developed and disseminated widely. 

 
The Application Process 

 
4.4 In line with good practice the application process was via an on-line form using 

the Council’s Grants Information Funding Tracking System (GIFTS). Prospective 
applicants were made aware that this system would be used in advance and 10 
training sessions were run. Alongside this a telephone helpline, email response 
service and one-to-one support were also available. 

 
4.5 In total, 287 applications were received from 166 organisations within the original 

timeframe. 14 additional organisations advised that they had completed their 
applications and supporting documents but had difficulty in submitting them by 
the original deadline. The electronic application process was therefore ‘reopened’ 
until 23 January 2009 by which time a further 18 applications were received from 
those organisations. This made a total of 306 applications received from 184 
organisations. Subsequent to this, a late submission from Tower Hamlets 
Community Transport was agreed. 

 
4.6 A full list of agreed funding allocations is provided at Appendix 1. 

Page 24



3 3 

 
5. REVIEW OF ARRANGEMENTS 
 
5.1  Officers have undertaken a review of the new arrangements.  This has utilised an 

analysis of: 
� The profile of organisations funded 
� Members’ and officer’s feedback 
� The organisations who did and didn’t receive funding 
� Enquiries and feedback given by local third sector groups during and after the 

process  
� Feedback from organisations who were previously funded but did not submit 

an application for 2009/10 
� Findings emerging from the consultation process of the third sector strategy 

 
Overall findings 
 

5.2 We have compared the post-commissioning 2009/10 allocation to the pre-
commissioning 2008/09 allocation. This illustrates the following: 
� That the commissioning approach resulted in fewer awards of funding being 

made. In 2009/10 297 funding awards were made, down from 311 in 2008/09. 
� That average allocations were correspondingly larger. Specifically, the 

average award in 2009/10 was £13,969, up from £11,118 in 2008/09. 
 
The graph below illustrates the changes in the pattern of allocation: 
 

Mainstream Grant Allocations

156

75

30 24
12 8 6

125

58
39 37

23
10 5

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180

£0 -
£5k

£5 -
£10k

£10 -
£15k

£15 -
£25k

£25 -
£50k

£50 -
£100k

£100k+

Allocation Amount

Nu
m
be

r o
f A

llo
ca
tio

ns

2008/09
2009/10

  

Page 25



4 4 

5.3 The review highlighted a number of issues that were related to the new funding 
process.  These have been clustered into the following main themes: 
� Issues identified with the process 
� Results of the process 
� Accountability and transparency 
� Level of support available when applying for grants 
� Advertising and Publicity 
� Process timescales 
� Feedback, Appeals and Enquiries 
 

5.4 An overview of findings and proposals is included below. A more detailed 
breakdown is included in Appendix 2. Should the Grants Panel agree the 
proposed actions a full action plan for implementation will be developed and 
submitted to Cabinet. 

 
Theme 1 Issues Identified with the Process 

 
5.5 The review found that the funding documents lacked details of the scoring 

process that had been adopted. Also the service specifications were complex 
and not written in an accessible format. The online form was also perceived to be 
too complex. 

 
5.6 A small number of applicants reported problems in applying because the forms 

were online. These problems were for a variety of reasons, including a lack of 
appropriate IT equipment. Additionally a few organisations reported that process 
was too onerous for a small grant so they decided not to apply.  

 
5.7 Officers undertaking assessments found that the questions and guidelines could 

have been improved. They did not anticipate all the details needed from groups 
to ensure they answered questions appropriately.  

 
5.8 The review also investigated why organisations who applied in previous years did 

not apply to this commissioning round. It was identified that most of these groups 
did not apply due to their organisational capacity. These organisations would not 
have applied regardless of the move to a new funding approach or the online 
application system. 
 

5.9 Proposed key action: 
� Maintain the online application process but review and simplify forms and 

specifications where possible  
� Ensure that small organisations are provided with whatever support they need 

to submit an application 
� Develop and review guidance for groups in response to problems identified 

this year  
� Ensure all grant documents are tested with potential applicants 

 

Page 26



5 5 

Theme 2 Results of the process 
 
5.10 As detailed in 5.2 above, the review identified that the new funding process 

resulted in larger allocations. Correspondingly, larger organisations were more 
often the beneficiaries of these.  

 
5.11 Also, as part of the arrangements for 2009/10 the Community Engagement 

funding stream was amalgamated with the Economic Engagement funding 
stream. This was due to the prioritisation of activity to address worklessness. The 
impact of this was that a number of organisations had their funding discontinued 
as their work was not identified as a continued funding priority. This particularly 
applied to groups providing anti poverty, community cohesion and social 
inclusion projects.   

 
5.12 Proposed key actions: 

� Consider ways of providing a responsive small funding pot that is accessible 
to small organisations (N.B. A proposal to establish a Community Chest, 
which meets these criteria, has been included in the Third Sector Strategy. 
This will be taken forward subject to funding) 

� Consider options to provide resources to projects prioritising One Tower 
Hamlets activity. It is suggested that this could be facilitated by a review of 
our approach to the Corporate Match Funding stream. 

 
Theme 3 Accountability and transparency 

 
5.13 As detailed above, the allocation process was intended to be based around 

commissioning principles. Members, Third Sector organisations and officers all 
pointed to issues with the process arising from a lack of clarity about the degree 
to which the commissioning approach had been adopted. In some cases, the 
outcome of this was confusion about the rationale for some funding decisions. 

 
5.14 Also, Third Sector groups expressed a wish to be more involved in developing 

processes for assessment and allocation and an increased involvement in setting 
priorities. 

 
5.15 Proposed key actions:  

� Ensure that there is clarity about the approach for determining funding 
allocations. The Third Sector Strategy proposes that the commissioning 
approach is given time to bed down and that evaluation is undertaken before 
this decision is taken. 

� On the basis of the agreed approach, develop training and written guidance 
for all involved to improve the consistency of approach 

 
Theme 4 – Level of support available when applying for grants 

 

Page 27



6 6 

5.16 The review demonstrated a clear need for officers to be available to support 
applicants to develop their proposals. Also, some of the smaller groups did not 
have access to the technology needed to apply on line and, because of this, were 
at a disadvantage and have access to the technology needed to apply for this 
and other grants. 
 

5.17 Proposed key actions:  
� Provide funded advice to applicants from an independent third sector body 

not competing for same funds. This role could possibly be taken by the new 
Council for Voluntary Services that the Third Sector Strategy proposes we 
establish, subject to funding. 

� Ensure that small organisations are provided with whatever support they need 
to submit an application 

� Ensure all Grant Officers are available on closing day to give phone advice 
� Ensure appropriate IT support is available 

 
Theme 5 – Advertising and publicity 

 
5.18 Findings demonstrated that small groups with limited knowledge of the process 

didn’t know about the opportunity to apply. Additionally, Directorates Officers felt 
that they needed more control of the website information and documents related 
to their funding streams. 

 
5.19 Proposed key actions:  

� Make full use of the new Council for Voluntary Services that the Third Sector 
Strategy proposes we establish (subject to funding) and existing networks to 
inform groups of the application round 

� Put up posters at community centres to ensure small groups meeting at their 
premises are informed of funding opportunities. 

 
Theme 6 – Timescales of the process. 

 
5.20 Applicant organisations felt that the process needed to give a longer time 

between the advert and the closing date to enable more consortium bids to be 
developed.  Additionally, the review identified that the decision making time of the 
grants did not allow adequate time for groups to plan or manage effectively 
redundancies, recruitment and negotiation of service agreements.  

 
5.21 Proposed key actions:  

� Timescales for commissioning and grant aid to be announced in good time  
� Bring forward application process and decision making process. 
� Confirm funding amounts three months before the start of projects, if possible. 

 
Theme  7 – Feedback, Appeals and Enquiries 

 

Page 28



7 7 

5.22 Concerns were expressed over the lack of a Council for Voluntary Services to 
negotiate and feedback to the Council and advocate on behalf of the sector.  The 
increase of enquiries to members and officers was shown to link to the lack of a 
review / appeals process. 
 

5.23 Proposed key actions: 
� Development of new Council for Voluntary Services that the Third Sector 

Strategy proposes we establish, subject to funding. 
� Supply those who submitted rejected applications with a written explanation 

with the offer of further discussion 
� Establish a controlled appeals process to limit enquiries with clarity about who 

can appeal and for what reasons. 
 
6. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
6.1 The report describes the review of the Council’s mainstream grants 

arrangements and recommends improvements to the current grants processes. 
The creation and funding of a new Council for Voluntary Services (CVS) 
described in this report are subject to the budget process, and will be considered 
for approval by Cabinet on 4th November 2009. 

 
The costs of implementing the other proposals described in this report are 
expected to be contained within existing budgets and there are no additional 
budget implications arising from this report.   

 
7. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
 
7.1 There are no specific legal comments arsing from this report.  The contents of 

the report deal with operational matters concerning the process for dealing with 
applications for and the award of grants. 

 
8. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
8.1 The Third Sector provides responsive services that help to improve the quality of 

resident’s lives.  Mainstream grant funding streams aim to prioritise reducing 
inequalities, discrimination and poverty. The actions proposed aim to strengthen 
the funding in relation to the One Tower Hamlets objectives. 
  

9. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
9.1 The Third Sector plays a leading role in making Tower Hamlets greener and 

more sustainable. Improving the Mainstream Grants process will further 
strengthen the ability of organisation working in this field to deliver. 

 
10. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 

Page 29



8 8 

10.1 There are a number of risk implications in relation to developing grant practice.   
� Making the process more accessible will bring about an increase in 

applications that the already over subscribed budgets will not be able to 
support.  

� Reducing the confidence in the integrity of the funding framework. 
� Increase of enquiries from groups 

 
10.2 Officers have proposed actions in Appendix A that will mitigate risk: 

� reduce the expectation of applicants in the amount they ask for 
� support applicants to submit applications 
� develop clarity and procedures to improve the probity and timing for the of 

the programme 
 
11. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 

There are no proposals that require further funding in this report. 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of  “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

Brief description of  “back ground papers” Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 
 

To be completed by author To be completed by author ext. xxx 
 
 
12. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – List of 2008/09 funding allocations 
Appendix 2 – Full table of feedback from the review and proposed actions 

Page 30



 MS
G 
Pr
oje

cts
 20

09
 – 
20
10
 
 

 
 

 
AP

PE
ND

IX 
1 

 5 
O
ct
ob
er
 2
00
9 

  Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 Ad
ult

s H
ea
lth

 &
  W

ell
be

ing
 

 Al
zh
eim

er'
s S

oc
iet
y 

Ac
tiv
e L

ink
s N

ort
h E

as
t L
on
do
n 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
16
,24

1 
 Br

om
ley

 By
 Bo

w 
Ce

ntr
e 

Ar
tea

st 
Ad

ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
12
,44

6 
 Br

un
e B

ern
ard

 an
d C

art
er 

Co
mm

un
ity
 C
en
tre
 B

BC
 El

de
rly
 Se

rvi
ce
s 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
2,9

59
 

 (B
BC

) 
 Ch

ild
ren

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 G
rou

p 
Din

 Fi
tne

ss
 C
lub

 
Ad

ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
3,0

00
 

 De
afP

LU
S -

 Br
ea
kth

rou
gh
 D
ea
f a
nd
 H
ea
rin
g 

To
we

r H
am

let
s A

dv
oc
ac
y S

erv
ice

 fo
r D

ea
f 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
44
,66

2 
 In
teg

rat
ion

 
an
d H

ard
 of
 H
ea
rin
g P

eo
ple

. 
 De

kh
tay

 C
ha
i 

Pe
er 

Su
pp
ort

 an
d T

alk
ing

 N
ew

sp
ap
er 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
5,2

92
 

 Di
sa
bil
ity
 C
oa
litio

n T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Dis

ab
ility

 En
qu
iry
 Li
ne
 & 

Vo
ice

 of
 D
isa

ble
d 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
29
,00

8 
 

Pe
op
le 

 Lo
nd
on
 Bu

dd
his

t C
en
tre

 
Pr
ev
en
tin
g r

ela
ps
e i
nto

 ad
dic

tio
n t
hro

ug
h 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
7,9

18
 

 
MB

RP
 

 Lo
nd
on
 Bu

dd
his

t C
en
tre

 
Pr
ev
en
tin
g r

ela
ps
e i
nto

 de
pre

ss
ion

 th
rou

gh
 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
13
,85

6 
 

MB
CT

 
 M
EN

CA
P T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
To

we
r H

am
let
s G

ate
wa

y C
lub

 
Ad

ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
50
,00

0 
 Pa

thw
ay
s T

rus
t 

Pa
thw

ay
s a

t S
t.P

au
l's 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
8,5

00
 

 So
ma

li I
nte

gra
tio
n T

ea
m 
(S
IT)

 
50
 pl
us
 pr

oje
ct 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
7,8

04
 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s F

rie
nd
s a

nd
 N
eig

hb
ou
rs 

Be
frie

nd
ing

 se
rvi
ce
 fo
r s
oc
ial
ly 
iso

lat
ed
 ol
de
r 

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
25
,00

0 
 

pe
op
le 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s M

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 Be

frie
nd
ing

 
Be

sid
e's

 An
xie

ty 
Su

pp
ort

 Pr
oje

ct 
Ad

ult
s H

ea
lth
 & 

 W
ell
be
ing

 
10
,61

8 
 Sc

he
me

 
 To

tal
 A
du

lts
 H
ea
lth

 &
  W

ell
be

ing
 (1

4 i
tem

s) 
23
7,3

04
 

 
1 

Page 31



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 Ad
vic

e a
nd

 A
nti

-P
ov

ert
y 

 Ac
co
un
t 3
 W

om
en
's 
Co

ns
ult
an
cy
 Se

rvi
ce
 

La
p 5

 Bo
w 
Ad

vic
e P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
51
,96

4 
 Br

om
ley

 By
 Bo

w 
Ce

ntr
e 

La
p 6

 - A
dv
ice

 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
55
,08

1 
 Ch

ine
se
 As

so
cia

tio
n o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Ch

ine
se
 / M

an
da
rin
 Ad

vic
e S

erv
ice

 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
16
,74

0 
 Ci
tiz
en
s A

dv
ice

 Bu
rea

u (
Ea

st 
En

d C
AB

x) 
Bo

rou
gh
wid

e G
en
era

list
 Ad

vic
e 

Ad
vic

e a
nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
11
3,1

81
 

 Ci
tiz
en
s A

dv
ice

 Bu
rea

u (
Ea

st 
En

d C
AB

x) 
Cla

im
 th
e M

ax
 

Ad
vic

e a
nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
10
7,2

15
 

 Ci
tiz
en
s A

dv
ice

 Bu
rea

u (
Ea

st 
En

d C
AB

x) 
La
p 2

 - A
dv
ice

 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
53
,26

3 
 Is
lan

d A
dv
ice

 C
en
tre

 
La
p 1

 Be
thn

al 
Gr
ee
n A

dv
ice

 C
on
so
rtiu

m 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
80
,28

3 
 Is
lan

d A
dv
ice

 C
en
tre

 
Em

erg
en
cy
 Fu

nd
ing

 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
4,0

00
 

 Is
lan

d A
dv
ice

 C
en
tre

 
La
p 8

 - A
dv
ice

 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
44
,06

5 
 Lim

eh
ou
se
 Pr

oje
ct 
Lim

ite
d 

La
ps
 3 
& 4

 St
ep
ne
y a

nd
 W

ap
pin

g A
dv
ice

 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
10
7,0

45
 

 
Co

ns
ort

ium
 

 Lim
eh
ou
se
 Pr

oje
ct 
Lim

ite
d 

La
p 7

 - L
im
eh
ou
se
 / P

op
lar
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ad
vic

e a
nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
62
,98

0 
 O
ce
an
 So

ma
li C

om
mu

nit
y A

ss
oc
iat
ion

 
So

ma
li A

dv
ice

 N
etw

ork
 

Ad
vic

e a
nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
56
,10

5 
 Pr

ax
is 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Pr

oje
cts

 Lt
d 

Ne
w 
Re

sid
en
t / 
Mi
gra

nt 
Ad

vic
e S

erv
ice

 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
21
,78

9 
 To

we
r H

am
let
s L

aw
 C
en
tre

 
Sp

ec
ial
ist
 Ad

vic
e P

rov
isio

n 
Ad

vic
e a

nd
 An

ti-P
ov
ert

y 
14
5,2

07
 

 To
tal

 A
dv

ice
 an

d A
nti

-P
ov

ert
y (

14
 ite

ms
) 

91
8,9

18
 

  Ar
ts 

an
d E

ve
nts

 
 Ch

ine
se
 As

so
cia

tio
n o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Mo

on
 G
od
de
ss
 D
an
ce
 G
rou

p 
Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
2,0

45
 

 Ch
ise

nh
ale

 D
an
ce
 Sp

ac
e 

Ch
ise

nh
ale

 D
an
ce
 Sp

ac
e -

 Su
mm

er 
an
d 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
24
,29

1 
 

W
int
er 

Da
nc
e F

es
tiv
als

 
 G
old

en
 M
oo
n Y

ou
th 
Pr
oje

ct 
Sh

ad
we

ll M
ult
icu

ltu
ral
 Fe

sti
va
l 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
4,5

00
 

 
2 

Page 32



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 G
ran

d U
nio

n M
us
ic 
Th

ea
tre

 Lt
d; 
Gr
an
d 

Gr
an
d U

nio
n Y

ou
th 
Or
ch
es
tra

 an
d M

us
ica

l 
Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
10
,00

0 
 Un

ion
; G

ran
d U

nio
n B

an
d; 
Gr
an
d U

nio
n 

Op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r Y

ou
ng
 Pe

op
le 
in 
To

we
r 

 O
rch

es
tra
 

Ha
ml
ets

 
 

 
 G
ree

n C
an
dle

 D
an
ce
 C
om

pa
ny
 

OH
! A

rts
 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
20
,00

0 
 Ha

lf M
oo
n Y

ou
ng
 Pe

op
le's

 Th
ea
tre

 
Pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
the

atr
e v

en
ue
 fo
r y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
24
,66

4 
 

in 
To

we
r H

am
let
s 

 Pr
ax
is 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Pr

oje
cts

 Lt
d 

Ne
w 
Vo

ice
s I
I 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
4,0

00
 

 St
 Pa

ul'
s A

rts
 Tr

us
t (T

he
 Sp

ac
e) 

Th
e S

pa
ce
 - C

ore
 co

sts
 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
12
,00

0 
 St
itc
he
s i
n T

im
e 

'Ai
rbr

us
he
d I
n: 
Pa

tte
rns

 in
 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y' 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
11
,00

0 
 Sy

lhe
ti B

au
l S

ho
ng
ith
 G
us
hti
 

Be
ng
ali
 Ar

ts 
& C

ult
ura

l E
du
ca
tio
n a

nd
 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
5,0

00
 

 
W
ork

sh
op
 Pr

og
ram

me
 

 To
yn
be
e H

all
 

Ar
ts 
'Ex

pre
ss
!' 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
7,0

00
 

 Ud
ich

i S
hil
pi 
Go

sth
i 

Ud
ich

i S
hil
pi 
Go

sth
i 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
4,5

00
 

 Yo
un
g N

ew
s 

Yo
un
g N

ew
s 

Ar
ts 
an
d E

ve
nts

 
3,0

00
 

  To
tal

 A
rts

 an
d E

ve
nts

 (1
3 i
tem

s) 
13
2,0

00
 

  Ch
ild

ren
 &
 Fa

mi
lie
s 

 AP
AS

EN
TH

 
AP

AS
EN

TH
 Sp

ec
ial
 N
ee
ds
 Su

pp
ort

 Pr
oje

ct 
Ch

ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

28
,00

0 
 At
tle
e F

ou
nd
ati
on
; A

ttle
e F

ou
nd
ati
on
 (T

he
) 

Att
lee

 Fa
mi
lie
s P

roj
ec
t 

Ch
ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

13
,30

0 
 Co

mm
un
ity
 of
 R
efu

ge
es
 fro

m 
Vie

tna
m 
- E

as
t 
Ho

me
 Sc

ho
ol/
 Li
as
ion

 pr
oje

ct 
Ch

ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

5,0
00
 

 Lo
nd
on
 

 Ea
st 
Lo
nd
on
 As

ian
 Fa

mi
ly 
Co

un
se
llin

g 
Ea

st 
Lo
nd
on
 As

ian
 Fa

mi
ly 
Co

un
se
llin

g 
Ch

ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

33
,50

0 
 Pr

ax
is 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Pr

oje
cts

 Lt
d 

Pr
ax
is 
Fa

mi
ly 
Ca

re 
Ch

ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

13
,00

0 

 
3 

Page 33



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 Sh
ob
ujs

ha
thi
 

Ad
vo
ca
cy
 Se

rvi
ce
s f
or 

Ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 

Ch
ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

8,5
00
 

 
Dis

ab
iliti
es
 

 So
ma

li E
du
ca
tio
n a

nd
 C
ult
ura

l P
roj
ec
t 

Ho
me

-S
ch
oo
l L
iai
so
n P

roj
ec
t 

Ch
ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

5,0
00
 

 So
ma

li I
nte

gra
tio
n T

ea
m 
(S
IT)

 
Th

e K
ids

 W
ell
be
ing

 Pr
oje

ct 
Ch

ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

6,0
00
 

 So
ma

li P
are

nts
 an

d C
hil
dre

n's
 Pl

ay
 

Pla
y O

pp
ort

un
ity
 Fo

r S
om

ali
 D
isa

ble
d 

Ch
ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

8,4
00
 

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

Ch
ild
ren

 
 St
ep
 Fo

rw
ard

 
Se

xu
al 
Ab

us
e C

ou
se
llin

g a
nd
 Su

pp
ort
 

Ch
ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

24
,00

0 
 To

we
r H

am
let
s P

are
nts

' C
en
tre

 
He

alt
hy
 Fa

mi
lie
s -
- H

ea
lth
y C

hil
dre

n 
Ch

ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

5,0
00
 

 W
om

en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

Be
ng
ali
, S

om
ali
, C

hin
es
e a

nd
 Vi

etn
am

es
e 

Ch
ild
ren

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s 

21
,50

0 
 

Fa
mi
ly 
Ad

vo
ca
cy
 an

d S
up
po
rt 

 To
tal

 C
hil

dr
en

 &
 Fa

mi
lie
s (

12
 ite

ms
) 

17
1,2

00
 

  Co
mm

un
ity

 La
ng

ua
ge

s 
 Al
 M
aji
dia

h 
Mo

the
r T

on
gu
e a

nd
 C
om

mu
nit
y L

an
gu
ag
es
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

7,5
00
 

 Bl
ac
k W

om
en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Su

pp
ort

 
BW

HA
FS

' S
om

ali
 M
oth

er 
To

ng
ue
 Pr

og
ram

me
Co

mm
un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Bo
un
da
ry 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Sc

ho
ol 

BC
S M

oth
er 

To
ng
ue
 Pr

oje
ct 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

8,2
50
 

 Ch
ild
ren

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 G
rou

p 
Mo

the
r T

on
gu
e E

du
ca
tio
n P

roj
ec
t 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Ch
ine

se
 As

so
cia

tio
n o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Ch

ine
se
 In
de
pe
nd
en
t S

ch
oo
l (M

oth
er 

To
ng
ue
Co

mm
un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 
Cla

ss
es
) 

 Cu
bit
t T

ow
n B

an
gla

de
sh
i C

ult
ura

l A
ss
oc
iat
ion

Cu
bit
t T

ow
n B

an
gla

de
sh
i C

ult
ura

l A
ss
oc
iat
ion

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Cu
llo
de
n B

an
gla

de
sh
i P

are
nts

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

LE
AR

NI
NG

 ZO
NE

 
Co

mm
un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Da
'wa

tul
 Is
lam

 U
K a

nd
 Ei
re 

Th
e D

aru
l U

mm
ah
 M
oth

er 
To

ng
ue
 Pr

oje
ct 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Ea
st 
En

d C
om

mu
nit
y S

ch
oo
l 

Mo
the

r T
on
gu
e P

roj
ec
t 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

6,5
00
 

 G
rea

ter
 Sy

lhe
t D

ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 W

elf
are

 
GS

C 
Mo

the
r T

on
gu
e P

roj
ec
t 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Co
un
cil 

UK
 

 
4 

Page 34



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 He
rm

ita
ge
 M
oth

er 
To

ng
ue
 an

d S
tud

y S
up
po
rtM

oth
er 

To
ng
ue
 Be

ng
ali
 Pr

oje
ct 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Ce
ntr

e 
 Ho

rw
oo
d E

sta
te 
Ba

ng
la 
Sc

ho
ol 

Mo
the

r to
ng
ue
 an

d s
up
pli
me

nta
ry 
ed
uc
ati
on
alC

om
mu

nit
y L

an
gu
ag
es
 

5,1
50
 

 
pro

jec
t 

 Is
lan

d B
en
ga
li W

elf
are

 O
rga

nis
ati
on
 

Ba
ng
lay

 Ko
ta 
Bo

li 
Co

mm
un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Is
le 
of 
Do

gs
 Ba

ng
lad

es
hi 
As

so
cia

tio
n a

nd
 

Isl
e o

f D
og
s M

oth
er 
To

ng
ue
 Pr

oje
ct 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,5
00
 

 Cu
ltu
ral
 C
en
tre

 
 Je

rem
iah

 C
hil
dre

n's
 W

elf
are

 Pr
oje

ct 
Je
rem

iah
 C
hil
dre

n W
elf
are

 Pr
oje

ct 
Lim

ite
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

4,2
00
 

 
Mo

the
r T

ou
ng
ue
 Be

ng
ali
 

 Lim
eh
ou
se
 W

elf
are

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

Lim
eh
ou
se
 M
oth

er 
To

ng
ue
 C
las

se
s 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 O
ce
an
 So

ma
li C

om
mu

nit
y A

ss
oc
iat
ion

 
So

ma
li L

an
gu
ag
e a

nd
 At

tai
nm

en
t P

roj
ec
t 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,5
00
 

 Po
pla

r B
an
gla

de
sh
i C

om
mu

nit
y P

roj
ec
t 

Mo
the

r T
on
gu
e 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Sh
ad
we

ll G
ard

en
s T

en
an
ts 
an
d R

es
ide

nts
 

Sh
ad
we

ll G
ard

en
s T

RA
 & 

Be
ng
ali
 C
om

mu
nit
yC

om
mu

nit
y L

an
gu
ag
es
 

3,1
00
 

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

Sc
ho
ol 

 So
lan

de
r G

ard
en
s M

us
lim

 C
om

mu
nit
y a

nd
 

Mo
the

r T
on
gu
e 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 C
en
tre

 
 So

ma
li E

du
ca
tio
n a

nd
 C
ult
ura

l P
roj
ec
t 

SE
CP

 So
ma

li M
oth

er 
To

ng
ue
 C
las

se
s 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,5
00
 

 St
 Pe

ter
's 
Be

ng
ali
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

St.
 Pe

ter
's 
Mo

the
r T

on
gu
e S

ch
oo
l 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 St
. P

ete
r's
 Su

pp
lem

en
tar
y S

ch
oo
l 

Be
ng
ali
 M
oth

er 
To

ng
ue
 Pr

oje
ct 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 St
iffo

rd 
TJ
RS

 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 
Sti
ffo
rd 

Su
pp
lem

en
tar

y S
ch
oo
l 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,5
00
 

 Th
am

es
 Be

ng
ali
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
 Pr

oje
ct 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 
Th

am
es
 Be

ng
ali
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

 W
ad
aji
r S

om
ali
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

W
ad
aji
r M

oth
er 

To
ng
ue
 C
las

se
s 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,1
00
 

 W
ap
pin

g B
an
gla

de
sh
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

W
ap
pin

g B
en
ga
li M

oth
er 

To
ng
ue
 Ed

uc
ati
on
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 La

ng
ua
ge
s 

3,5
00
 

 
Pr
oje

ct 
 To

tal
 C
om

mu
nit

y L
an

gu
ag

es
 (2

7 i
tem

s) 
10
1,8

00
 

 
5 

Page 35



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 Ea
rly

 Ye
ars

 
 Ab

ert
ots

 Pl
ay
 

Ab
ert

ots
 Pl

ay
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

8,9
62
 

 Al
len

 G
ard

en
s P

lay
gro

up
 

All
en
 G
ard

en
s P

lay
gro

up
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

23
,03

1 
 Av

eb
ury

 Pl
ay
gro

up
 

Av
eb
ury

 Pl
ay
gro

up
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,77

7 
 Br

ay
for

d S
qu
are

 Pl
ay
gro

up
 

Br
ay
for

d S
qu
are

 Pl
ay
gro

up
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

16
,11

6 
 Bu

rde
tt E

sta
te 
Pla

yg
rou

p 
Bu

rde
tt E

sta
te 
Pla

yg
rou

p 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,77

7 
 Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 N
etw

ork
 To

we
r H

am
let
s 

Th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f in

fra
str
uc
tur

e s
up
po
rt t

o 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

15
8,4

26
 

 
vo
lun

tar
y g

rou
ps
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 ea

rly
 ye

ars
 

 
se
rvi
ce
s. 

 G
lam

is 
Co

mm
un
ity
 N
urs

ery
 

Gl
am

is 
Co

mm
un
ity
 N
urs

ery
 - S

taf
fin
g 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

22
,96

2 
 

Pr
op
os
al 

 Is
lan

d H
ou
se
 Pr

e-S
ch
oo
l P
lay

gro
up
 

Isl
an
d H

ou
se
 Pl

ay
gro

up
. 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,77

8 
 Lin

co
ln 
Ha

ll P
lay

gro
up
 

Lin
co
ln 
Ha

ll P
lay

gro
up
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,77

7 
 M
ile
 En

d N
urs

ery
 an

d P
lay

gro
up
 

Mi
le 
En

d N
urs

ery
 & 

Pla
yg
rou

p. 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

22
,96

2 
 

Pr
es
ch
oo
l E

du
ca
tio
n a

nd
 D
ay
ca
re.

 
 M
ud
ch
ute

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

Mu
dd
y B

oo
ts 
Pla

yg
rou

p 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,79

2 
 M
un
ch
kin

s P
lay

gro
up
 

Mu
nc
hk
ins

 (T
C)
 Pl

ay
gro

up
 R
es
ou
rce

s 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

9,1
97
 

 Po
pla

r P
lay

 C
en
tre

 
Un

de
r 5

's 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 Se

rvi
ce
, 3
-11

 Af
ter
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

30
,68

7 
 

Sc
ho
ol 
& h

oli
da
y P

lay
 Sc

he
me

, F
am

ily 
 

Dr
op
-In

 se
rvi
ce
 an

d t
oy
 lib

rar
y. 

 Ra
gg
ed
 Sc

ho
ol 
Mu

se
um

 
Ho

ldi
da
y C

lub
 Ac

tiv
itie

s o
ve
r 3

 ye
ars

 20
09
 to
 E

arl
y Y

ea
rs 

6,1
48
 

 
20
12
 

 Ra
inb

ow
 Pl

ay
gro

up
 

Ra
inb

ow
 Pl

ay
gro

up
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,77

8 
 Ra

nw
ell
 Pl

ay
gro

up
 

Ra
nw

ell
 Pl

ay
gro

up
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,77

7 
 Sc

all
yw

ag
s P

are
nt 
Ru

n N
urs

ery
 

Nu
rse

ry 
Sta

ff F
un
din

g 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

9,1
85
 

 
6 

Page 36



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 So
ma

li I
nte

gra
tio
n T

ea
m 
(S
IT)

 
Br
igh

t S
pa
rks

 an
d P

ho
nic

s P
lay

gg
rou

ps
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

5,7
84
 

 St
 H
ild
a's

 Ea
st 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 
St.

Hil
da
's 
Ea

st 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 C
rèc

he
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

15
,50

1 
 

an
d U

nd
er 

5's
 Pr

oje
ct.
 

 Ta
te 
Ho

us
e P

lay
gro

up
 

Ta
te 
Ho

us
e P

lay
gro

up
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,77

7 
 To

we
r H

am
let
s O

pp
ort

un
ity
 Pl

ay
gro

up
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s O

pp
ort

un
ity
 G
rou

p S
erv

ice
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

78
,66

8 
 

De
live

ry 
 To

yh
ou
se
 Li
bra

rie
s A

ss
oc
iat
ion

 of
 To

we
r 

To
yh
ou
se
 So

ft P
lay

 pr
oje

cts
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

25
,23

1 
 Ha

ml
ets

 (M
ob
ile
 To

y L
ibr
ary

 fo
r G

rou
ps
) 

 To
yh
ou
se
 Li
bra

rie
s A

ss
oc
iat
ion

 of
 To

we
r 

To
yh
ou
se
 C
ore

 O
pe
rat

ion
s, 
To

y L
ibr
ary

 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

78
,14

2 
 Ha

ml
ets

 (M
ob
ile
 To

y L
ibr
ary

 fo
r G

rou
ps
) 

Su
pp
ort

 in
clu

din
g S

om
ali
 W

ork
 

 To
yh
ou
se
 Li
bra

rie
s A

ss
oc
iat
ion

 of
 To

we
r 

Ho
me

 Vi
sit
ing

 M
ob
ile
 To

y L
ibr
ary

 se
rvi
ce
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

24
,82

5 
 Ha

ml
ets

 (M
ob
ile
 To

y L
ibr
ary

 fo
r G

rou
ps
) 

 Ve
rno

n P
lay

gro
up
 

Ve
rno

n P
re 

Sc
ho
ol 
Pla

yg
rou

p 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

24
,12

3 
 W
ap
pin

g P
lay

gro
up
 

W
ap
pin

g P
lay

gro
up
 

Ea
rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,77

7 
 W
ea
ve
rs 
Ad

ve
ntu

re 
Pla

yg
rou

nd
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

PL
AY

 TI
ME

 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

13
,55

6 
 To

tal
 Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 (2

7 i
tem

s) 
69
7,5

16
 

  Ec
on

om
ic 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

 Ac
co
un
t 3
 W

om
en
's 
Co

ns
ult
an
cy
 Se

rvi
ce
 

Ba
sic

 sk
ills
 fo
r C

hil
dc
are

 
Ec

on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
38
,60

0 
 Bl
ac
k W

om
en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Su

pp
ort

 
Vo

lun
tee

rs 
& W

ork
 Pl

ac
em

en
t P

rog
ram

me
 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
11
,30

0 
 Ch

ine
se
 As

so
cia

tio
n o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Ch

ine
se
 O
pp
ort

un
ity
 C
en
tre

 Pr
oje

ct 
Ec

on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
8,6

00
 

 Is
lan

d A
dv
ice

 C
en
tre

 
To

we
r H

am
let
s V

olu
nte

er 
Ad

vic
e P

roj
ec
t 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
15
,00

0 
 Ja

go
na
ri W

om
en
's 
Ed

uc
ati
on
al 
Re

so
urc

e 
Co

nfi
de
nt 
En

gli
sh
 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
20
,00

0 
 Ce

ntr
e 

 Lim
eh
ou
se
 Pr

oje
ct 
Lim

ite
d 

Lim
eh
ou
se
 Pr

oje
ct'
s F

irs
t S

tep
s t
o 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
36
,10

0 
 

Em
plo

ym
en
t 

 
7 

Page 37



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 O
ce
an
 So

ma
li C

om
mu

nit
y A

ss
oc
iat
ion

 
Ed

uc
ati
on
 & 

So
cia

l C
are

 Vo
lun

tee
rin
g 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
38
,00

0 
 Pr

ax
is 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Pr

oje
cts

 Lt
d 

Pr
ax
is 
Em

plo
ym

en
t A

cc
es
s 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
40
,70

0 
 So

ma
li I
nte

gra
tio
n T

ea
m 
(S
IT)

 
So

ma
li W

om
en
s E

mp
ow

erm
en
t a
nd
 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
15
,00

0 
 

Aw
are

ne
ss
 Pr

oje
ct 

 St
 Pe

ter
's 
Be

ng
ali
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

St.
 Pe

ter
's 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Em

po
we

rm
en
t P

roj
ec
t E

co
no
mi
c E

ng
ag
em

en
t 

15
,00

0 
 St
iffo

rd 
TJ
RS

 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 
Ga

in 
fro

m 
Vo

lun
tee

rin
g 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
28
,00

0 
 St
itc
he
s i
n T

im
e 

Do
ra 

Ha
ll W

om
en
: P

rog
res

sio
n R

ou
te 
to 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
4,3

00
 

 
Em

plo
ym

en
t th

rou
gh
 Te

xti
les

 
 Th

e P
rin
ce
's 
Tru

st 
Th

e T
ea
m 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
27
,60

0 
 Th

e R
oy
al 
Lo
nd
on
 So

cie
ty 
for

 th
e B

lin
d 

Vis
ion

ary
 Pl

ac
em

en
ts 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
27
,00

0 
 Tr
ee
s f
or 

Cit
ies

 
To

we
r H

am
let
s G

row
ing

 Sk
ills
 Pr

oje
ct 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
25
,00

0 
 W
ad
aji
r S

om
ali
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

W
ad
aji
r W

om
en
's 
Pr
oje

ct 
Ec

on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
15
,00

0 
 W
ap
pin

g B
an
gla

de
sh
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

W
ap
pin

g B
an
gla

de
sh
i C

om
mu

nit
y 

Ec
on
om

ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
7,0

00
 

 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

 To
tal

 Ec
on

om
ic 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
(17

 ite
ms

) 
37
2,2

00
 

  Ho
us

ing
 G
en

era
l F

un
d 

 Lim
eh
ou
se
 Pr

oje
ct 
Lim

ite
d 

Lim
eh
ou
se
 Fa

mi
ly 
Su

pp
ort

 Se
rvi
ce
 

Ho
us
ing

 G
en
era

l F
un
d 

33
,50

0 
 St
iffo

rd 
TJ
RS

 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 
Sti
ffo
rd 

Te
na
nts

 an
d R

es
ide

nts
 Ad

vic
e P

roj
ec
tH
ou
sin

g G
en
era

l F
un
d 

7,6
00
 

 To
tal

 H
ou

sin
g G

en
era

l F
un

d (
2 i
tem

s) 
41
,10

0 
  Lif

elo
ng

 Le
arn

ing
 

 Bl
ac
k W

om
en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Su

pp
ort

 
Bla

ck
 W

om
en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Su

pp
ort

's 
Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 
15
,28

8 
 

So
ma

li W
om

en
's 
Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 Su
pp
ort

 
 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

 Is
lan

d H
ou
se
 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 
AB

LE
 (A

du
lt B

as
ic 
Lif
e E

du
ca
tio
n) 

Pr
oje

ct 
Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 
19
,26

0 
 Ke

en
 St

ud
en
ts 
Sc

ho
ol 

KS
S C

om
mu

nit
y P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
Pr
oje

ct 
Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 
7,0

00
 

 
8 

Page 38



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 Lim
eh
ou
se
 Pr

oje
ct 
Lim

ite
d 

Tim
e t
o L

ea
rn 

Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 
8,1

74
 

 M
ag
ic 
Me

 
Int
erg

en
era

tio
na
l P

rog
ram

me
 

Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 
19
,24

0 
 Pr

ax
is 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Pr

oje
cts

 Lt
d 

ES
OL

 Le
arn

ing
 C
irc
les

 
Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 
15
,75

8 
 St
itc
he
s i
n T

im
e 

Bu
ild
ers

 of
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Ro

ad
 

Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 
2,3

30
 

 To
tal

 Li
fel

on
g L

ea
rn
ing

 (7
 ite

ms
) 

87
,05

0 
  Ol
de

r P
eo

ple
 

 Ag
e C

on
ce
rn 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Ap
pia

n C
ou
rt R

es
ou
rce

 C
en
tre

 
Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
52
,90

4 
 Bl
ac
k W

om
en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Su

pp
ort

 
Ol
de
r S

om
ali
 W

om
en
's 
Lu
nc
he
on
 C
lub

 
Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
12
,33

7 
 Ch

ild
ren

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 G
rou

p 
Ha

rkn
es
s L

un
ch
eo
n C

lub
 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
16
,00

5 
 Ch

ine
se
 As

so
cia

tio
n o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Ch

ine
se
 El

de
rly
 Lu

nc
he
on
 C
lub

 
Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
5,8

08
 

 Co
mm

un
ity
 of
 R
efu

ge
es
 fro

m 
Vie

tna
m 
- E

as
t 
Eld

erl
y L

un
ch
eo
n C

lub
 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
25
,00

0 
 Lo

nd
on
 

 Is
lan

d B
en
ga
li W

elf
are

 O
rga

nis
ati
on
 

Isl
an
d S

en
ior
s 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
7,9

64
 

 RA
DI
CL

E -
 St

. J
am

es
 th
e L

es
s L

un
ch
 C
lub

 
St 

Ja
me

s t
he
 Le

ss
 Lu

nc
he
on
 C
lub

 
Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
17
,06

9 
 Sh

ah
jal
al 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 
Sh

ah
jal
al 
Lu
nc
he
on
 C
lub

 
Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
32
,00

0 
 So

ma
li S

en
ior
 C
itiz

en
s C

lub
 

So
ma

li S
en
ior
 C
itiz

en
s C

lub
 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
24
,00

0 
 St
 H
ild
a's

 Ea
st 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 
St.

 H
ild
a's

 Ea
st 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 Lu
nc
h 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
24
,08

6 
 

Clu
b S

erv
ice

 
 St
 Pe

ter
's 
Co

mm
un
ity
 an

d A
dv
ice

 C
en
tre

 
Ba

ng
lad

es
hi 
Eld

ers
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t P

roj
ec
t 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
16
,11

0 
 St
iffo

rd 
TJ
RS

 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 
Ste

pn
ey
 & 

Lim
eh
ou
se
 O
lde

r P
eo
ple

's 
Pr
oje

ct 
Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
24
,11

0 
 To

yn
be
e H

all
 

Su
rm

a B
an
gla

de
sh
i P

en
sio

ne
rs'
 cl
ub
 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
9,0

25
 

 To
yn
be
e H

all
 

Lu
nc
h C

lub
 at
 To

yn
be
e H

all
 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
34
,23

2 
 W
ad
aji
r S

om
ali
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

W
ad
aji
r S

om
ali
 El

de
rly
 Lu

nc
he
on
 C
lub

 
Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
20
,68

4 

 
9 

Page 39



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 W
ap
pin

g B
an
gla

de
sh
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

W
ap
pin

g B
an
gla

de
sh
i O

lde
r P

ers
on
's 
lun

ch
 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
10
,00

0 
 

Clu
b 

 W
om

en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

DU
MA

KA
 - O

lde
r S

om
ali
 W

om
en
's 
Gr
ou
p 

Ol
de
r P

eo
ple

 
25
,00

0 
 To

tal
 O
lde

r P
eo
ple

 (1
7 i
tem

s) 
35
6,3

34
 

 Sp
or
ts,

 Ph
ys
ica

l A
cti

vit
ies

 &
 O
pe

n S
pa

ce
s 

 Ba
ng
lad

es
h F

oo
tba

ll A
ss
oc
iat
ion

 
On

e A
cti
ve
 To

we
r H

am
let
s 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

10
,00

0 
 

Sp
ac
es
 

 Be
thn

al 
Gr
ee
n S

ha
rks

 Sw
im
mi
ng
 C
lub

 
Be

thn
al 
Gr
ee
n "

Sh
ark

s" 
Sw

im
mi
ng
 C
lub

 
Sp

ort
s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

10
,00

0 
 

Sp
ac
es
 

 Ch
ild
ren

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 G
rou

p 
Be

rne
r F

oo
tba

ll A
ca
de
my

 
Sp

ort
s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

3,3
15
 

 
Sp

ac
es
 

 De
afP

LU
S -

 Br
ea
kth

rou
gh
 D
ea
f a
nd
 H
ea
rin
g 

To
we

r H
am

let
s D

ea
f A

rts
, C

ult
ura

l a
nd
 Sp

ort
sS

po
rts
, P

hy
sic

al 
Ac

tiv
itie

s &
 O
pe
n 

5,0
00
 

 In
teg

rat
ion

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Sp
ac
es
 

 Do
ck
lan

ds
 Se

ttle
me

nt 
DO

CK
LA

ND
 SE

TT
LE

ME
NT

 M
UL

TI 
SP

OR
T 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

10
,00

0 
 

OP
PO

RT
UN

ITY
 PR

OJ
EC

T 
Sp

ac
es
 

 EL
MV

 Sh
ad
we

ll B
as
in 
Pr
oje

ct 
Aft

er 
Sc

ho
ol 
Ac
tiv
e 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

8,0
00
 

 
Sp

ac
es
 

 EL
MV

 Sh
ad
we

ll B
as
in 
Pr
oje

ct 
Ka

ya
kin

g t
o 2

01
2 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

8,0
00
 

 
Sp

ac
es
 

 Is
lan

d C
om

mu
nit
y C

ric
ke
t C

lub
 

Isl
e o

f D
og
s M

ult
i-S

po
rts
 Ac

ad
em

y 
Sp

ort
s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

7,5
00
 

 
Sp

ac
es
 

 Le
yto

n O
rie
nt 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Sp

ort
s P

rog
ram

me
 B

as
ke
tba

ll -
 pr

og
res

sio
n t
o e

xc
ell
en
ce
 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

8,6
85
 

 
Sp

ac
es
 

 Lo
nd
on
 Ti
ge
rs 

Ex
ce
lle
nc
e T

hro
ug
h R

ec
rea

tio
na
l H

ea
lth
 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

5,0
00
 

 
Sp

ac
es
 

 M
ud
ch
ute

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

Mu
dc
hu
te 
Ch

ild
ren

 an
d Y

ou
ng
 pe

op
ls 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

31
,54

1 
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Sp
ac
es
 

 
10
 

Page 40



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 O
sm

an
i D

ev
elo

pm
en
t T

rus
t 

He
alt
hy
 Fu

tur
es
 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

15
,00

0 
 

Sp
ac
es
 

 Sp
ita
lfie

lds
 C
ity
 Fa

rm
 

Sp
ita
lfie

lds
 C
ity
 Fa

rm
 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

13
,18

0 
 

Sp
ac
es
 

 Sp
ort

s N
etw

ork
 C
ou
nc
il 

Sp
ort

s D
ev
elo

pm
en
t P

rog
ram

me
 20

09
 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

10
,00

0 
 

Sp
ac
es
 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s S

po
rts
 C
ou
nc
il 

To
we

r H
am

let
s S

po
rts
 C
ou
nc
il 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

5,0
00
 

 
Sp

ac
es
 

 Va
lla
nc
e C

om
mu

nit
y S

po
rts
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Sp

ort
s P

rog
ram

me
 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

10
,00

0 
 Lim

ite
d 

Sp
ac
es
 

 W
ea
ve
rs 
Ad

ve
ntu

re 
Pla

yg
rou

nd
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

W
EA

VE
RS

 G
ET

 FI
T 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

22
,91

3 
 

Sp
ac
es
 

 W
om

en
's 
En

vir
on
me

nta
l N

etw
ork

 
To

we
r H

am
let
s U

rba
n F

oo
d G

ard
en
s 

Sp
ort

s, 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti
vit
ies

 & 
Op

en
 

15
,46

0 
 

Sp
ac
es
 

 To
tal

 Sp
or
ts,

 Ph
ys
ica

l A
cti

vit
ies

 &
 O
pe

n S
pa

ce
s (

18
 ite

ms
) 

19
8,5

94
 

  St
ud

y S
up

po
rt  

 Al
 M
aji
dia

h 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 Se
rvi
ce
s 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
2,0

00
 

 As
so
cia

tes
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y T

rus
t (U

K)
 

Ho
me

wo
rk 
an
d I
nte

rne
t E

du
ca
tio
n C

lub
 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
3,5

00
 

 At
tle
e F

ou
nd
ati
on
; A

ttle
e F

ou
nd
ati
on
 (T

he
) 

Att
lee

 Pl
us
 Pr

oje
ct 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
5,0

00
 

 Bl
ac
k W

om
en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Su

pp
ort

 
BW

HA
FS

' A
fte
r-s

ch
oo
l S
tud

y S
up
po
rt 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
4,4

40
 

 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

 Bo
un
da
ry 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Sc

ho
ol 

BC
S S

tud
y S

up
po
rt P

roj
ec
t 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
2,0

00
 

 Ch
ild
ren

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 G
rou

p 
Ho

me
 W

ork
 St

ud
y S

up
po
rt C

las
s 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
2,0

00
 

 Ch
ine

se
 As

so
cia

tio
n o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Ch

ine
se
 Af

ter
 Sc

ho
ol 
Ho

me
wo

rk 
Clu

b 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
1,9

47
 

 Cu
llo
de
n B

an
gla

de
sh
i P

are
nts

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

Pr
og
res

s t
ow

ard
 Fu

tur
e 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
3,0

00
 

 Da
'wa

tul
 Is
lam

 U
K a

nd
 Ei
re 

Th
e D

aru
l U

mm
ah
 St

ud
y S

up
po
rt P

roj
ec
t 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
2,0

00
 

 
11
 

Page 41



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 Fo
od
4T

ho
ug
ht 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
Fo

od
4T

ho
ug
ht 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 & 
Ho

me
wo

rk 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
5,0

00
 

 
Clu

b 
 G
old

en
 M
oo
n Y

ou
th 
Pr
oje

ct 
Sh

ad
we

ll A
ca
de
my

 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
2,0

00
 

 He
rm

ita
ge
 M
oth

er 
To

ng
ue
 an

d S
tud

y S
up
po
rtS

up
ple

me
nta

ry 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort
 Pr

oje
ct 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
1,5

00
 

 Ce
ntr

e 
 O
ce
an
 So

ma
li C

om
mu

nit
y A

ss
oc
iat
ion

 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
3,5

00
 

 Sh
ah
jal
al 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 
Sh

ah
jal
al 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
2,0

00
 

 So
ma

li E
du
ca
tio
n a

nd
 C
ult
ura

l P
roj
ec
t 

SE
CP

 Af
ter

-S
ch
oo
l S

tud
y S

up
po
rt 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
5,0

00
 

 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

 St
 Pe

ter
's 
Co

mm
un
ity
 an

d A
dv
ice

 C
en
tre

 
Ba

ng
lad

es
hi 
Gi
rls
 St

ud
y S

up
po
rt P

rog
ram

me
 S

tud
y S

up
po
rt 

2,0
00
 

 St
iffo

rd 
TJ
RS

 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 
Sti
ffo
rd 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 Pr
oje

ct 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
5,0

00
 

 Th
am

es
 Be

ng
ali
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
1,5

00
 

 
Th

am
es
 Be

ng
ali
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s P

are
nts

' C
en
tre

 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
3,0

00
 

 W
ad
aji
r S

om
ali
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

W
ad
aji
r H

om
ew

ork
 C
lub

 & 
Su

pp
lem

en
tar

y 
Stu

dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
3,0

00
 

 
Ed

uc
ati
on
 

 W
ap
pin

g B
an
gla

de
sh
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

W
ap
pin

g S
up
ple

me
nta

ry 
Ed

uc
ati
on
 Pr

oje
ct 

Stu
dy
 Su

pp
ort

 
3,0

00
 

 To
tal

 St
ud

y S
up

po
rt 
(21

 ite
ms

) 
62
,38

7 
  Su

mm
er 

Gr
an

ts 
 'A
' T
ea
m 
Ar
ts 

Fa
sh
ion

 an
d T

ex
tile

s S
um

me
r A

ca
de
my

 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Ac
orn

 FC
 & 

So
cc
er 

Co
ac
hin

g 
Co

mm
on
 - P

ark
 Fo

otb
all
 (S

um
me

r S
ch
em

e) 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,5
00
 

 Al
ph
a G

rov
e C

om
mu

nit
y T

rus
t 

Vid
eo
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t P

rod
uc
tio
n 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Bi
joy

 Yo
uth

 G
rou

p 
PO

SIT
IVE

 AC
TIV

ITI
ES

 FO
R 
YO

UN
G 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 
PE

OP
LE

 
 Bo

un
da
ry 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Sc

ho
ol 

BC
S S

um
me

r P
roj
ec
t 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,5
00
 

 
12
 

Page 42



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 BY
M 
Ba

ng
lad

es
h Y

ou
th 
Mo

ve
me

nt 
W
om

en
's 

Gi
rls
 Su

mm
er 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Ce
ntr

e o
f E

xc
ell
en
ce
 

 Co
llin

gw
oo
d T

en
an
ts 
& R

es
ide

nts
 As

so
cia

tio
nC

TR
A G

irls
 Pr

oje
ct 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,0
00
 

 Co
llin

gw
oo
d T

en
an
ts 
& R

es
ide

nts
 As

so
cia

tio
nC

TR
A B

oy
s P

roj
ec
t 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,0
00
 

 Co
mm

un
ity
 of
 R
efu

ge
es
 fro

m 
Vie

tna
m 
- E

as
t 
Su

mm
er 

Ac
tiv
itie

s 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,8
00
 

 Lo
nd
on
 

 Cu
llo
de
n B

an
gla

de
sh
i P

are
nts

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

Su
mm

er 
Ac
tiv
itie

s 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Ea
st 
Lo
nd
on
 So

ma
li Y

ou
th 
an
d W

elf
are

 
EL

SY
&W

C 
Su

mm
er 
'Fe

as
t o
f F

un
' A
cti
vit
y 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Ce
ntr

e 
Sc

he
me

 
 Ea

st 
Lo
nd
on
 So

ma
li Y

ou
th 
an
d W

elf
are

 
EL

YS
 & 

W
C 
Su

mm
er 
'Fe

as
t o
f F

un
'  A

cti
vit
y 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Ce
ntr

e 
for

 Yo
un
g S

om
ali
 W

om
en
 

 En
sig

n Y
ou
th 
Clu

b 
Th

e E
ns
ign

 Yo
uth

 C
lub

 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

90
0 

 G
eo
rge

 G
ree

n S
ch
oo
l 

E1
4 S

um
me

r P
roj
ec
t (C

om
ple

x N
ee
ds
) 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 G
eo
rge

 G
ree

n S
ch
oo
l 

Su
mm

er 
Pr
og
ram

me
 at
 St

 An
dre

w's
 W

ha
rf 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 G
eo
rge

 G
ree

n S
ch
oo
l 

Su
mm

er 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Ha
ile
yb
ury

 Sp
ec
ial
 Ed

uc
ati
on
al 
Ne

ed
s P

roj
ec
tSu

mm
er 

Pr
oje

ct 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Ju
nio

r M
us
lim

 C
irc
le 

JM
C 
Su

mm
er 

Pr
oje

ct 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,2
00
 

 Ju
nio

r M
us
lim

 C
irc
le 

Yo
un
g F

em
ale

 & 
Ac

tiv
e -

 Sh
ap
ing

 Fu
tur

e 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,4
00
 

 
W
om

en
 

 Ki
ng
sle

y H
all
 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 Li
mi
ted

 
Ba

ng
lad

es
hi 
W
om

en
's 
Su

mm
er 

Sc
he
me

 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 LB
TH

 O
utd

oo
r E

du
ca
tio
n 

Ou
tdo

or 
Ed

uc
ati
on
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,2
00
 

 M
art

ine
au
 Es

tat
e 

Su
mm

er 
Pr
oje

ct 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,0
00
 

 Ne
wa

rk 
Yo

uth
 Lo

nd
on
 

Lu
ke
 H
ou
se
 Su

mm
er 

Pr
oje

cts
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 O
ce
an
 So

ma
li C

om
mu

nit
y A

ss
oc
iat
ion

 
OS

CA
 Su

mm
er 

Yo
uth

 Pr
oje

ct 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,6
00
 

 O
ld 
Fo

rd 
Ho

us
ing

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

Su
mm

er 
Fla

va
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 
13
 

Page 43



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 O
ld 
Fo

rd 
Ho

us
ing

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

De
tac

he
d -

 Su
mm

er 
Tim

e O
ut 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

80
0 

 O
sm

an
i D

ev
elo

pm
en
t T

rus
t 

Yo
uth

 C
lub

 an
d H

oli
da
y P

roj
ec
t 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

13
,50

0 
 Re

dc
oa
t Y

ou
th 
Pr
oje

ct 
Su

mm
er 

Ac
tiv
e 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,2
00
 

 Sh
ad
we

ll B
as
in 
Ou

tdo
or 
Ac

tiv
ity
 C
en
tre

 
Su

mm
er 

ho
lid
ay
 pr

og
ram

me
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,6
00
 

 So
ma

li E
du
ca
tio
n a

nd
 C
ult
ura

l P
roj
ec
t 

Su
mm

er 
Ac
tiv
itie

s 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,5
00
 

 So
ma

li E
mp

loy
me

nt 
an
d T

rai
nin

g P
roj
ec
t 

Su
mm

er 
Ac
tiv
itie

s 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,6
00
 

 (S
ET

P)
 

 Sp
las

h Y
ou
th 
an
d C

om
mu

nit
y P

rog
ram

me
 

Sp
las

h Y
ou
th 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Sp
ort

s N
etw

ork
 C
ou
nc
il 

SN
C 
Su

mm
er 

Pr
oje

cts
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,9
00
 

 St
 H
ild
a's

 Ea
st 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 
HA

YA
 G
irls

 Pr
oje

ct 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 St
 H
ild
a's

 Ea
st 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 
Su

rja
mu

ki 
Dis

ab
led

 Yo
uth

 Pr
oje

ct 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 St
 H
ild
a's

 Ea
st 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 
St.

 H
ild
a's

 Bo
ys
 Pr

oje
ct 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 St
 Pe

ter
's 
Co

mm
un
ity
 an

d A
dv
ice

 C
en
tre

 
St.

 Pe
ter

's 
Ba

ng
lad

es
hi 
Gi
rls
 Su

mm
er 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 
Pla

ys
ch
em

e 2
00
9 

 St
iffo

rd 
TJ
RS

 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 
Sti
ffo
rd 

Su
mm

er 
Pr
oje

ct 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 St
ree

ts 
Of
 G
row

th 
Ar
t E

nte
rpr

ise
 H
ub
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Te
vio

t A
cti
on
 G
rou

p 
Su

mm
er 

Sc
he
me

 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 Th
am

es
 Be

ng
ali
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

Su
mm

er 
Pr
oje

ct 
20
09
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,0
00
 

 W
ea
ve
rs 
Ad

ve
ntu

re 
Pla

yg
rou

nd
 As

so
cia

tio
n 

Su
mm

er 
Ac
tiv
itie

s 
Su

mm
er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 W
hit
ec
ha
pe
l Y

ou
th 
Pr
oje

ct 
(LB

TH
) 

W
hit
ec
ha
pe
l B

oy
s S

um
me

r P
roj
ec
t 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,6
00
 

 W
hit
ec
ha
pe
l Y

ou
th 
Pr
oje

ct 
(LB

TH
) 

W
hit
ec
ha
pe
l G

irls
 & 

Yo
un
g W

om
en
 Su

mm
er 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

1,5
95
 

 
Pr
oje

ct 
 Xs

e A
ca
de
my

 
Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

's 
Co

mm
un
ity
 R
ad
io 
Sh

ow
 

Su
mm

er 
Gr
an
ts 

2,0
00
 

 To
tal

 Su
mm

er 
Gr

an
ts 

(45
 ite

ms
) 

88
,39

5 

 
14
 

Page 44



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 Th
ird

 Se
cto

r D
ev
elo

pm
en

t 
 Co

mm
un
ity
 Ac

co
un
tan

cy
 Se

lf H
elp

 (C
AS

H)
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Ac

co
un
tan

cy
 To

we
r H

am
let
s 

Th
ird
 Se

cto
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

25
,00

0 
 

(C
AT

H)
 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s C

om
mu

nit
y T

ran
sp
ort
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s C

om
mu

nit
y T

ran
sp
ort

 C
ore

 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

20
,00

0 
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s S

om
ali
 O
rga

nis
ati
on
s 

De
ve
lop

ing
 Af

ric
an
 Vo

lun
tar

y O
rga

nis
ati
on
s 

Th
ird
 Se

cto
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

14
,79

9 
 Ne

tw
ork

 (T
HS

ON
) 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s S

om
ali
 O
rga

nis
ati
on
s 

Ca
pa
cit
y b

uil
din

g t
he
 fro

ntl
ine

 So
ma

li 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

10
,00

0 
 Ne

tw
ork

 (T
HS

ON
) 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 

 Vo
lun

tee
r C

en
tre

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Inc
rea

sin
g B

es
t P

rac
tic
e i
n V

olu
nte

er 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

10
,00

0 
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
 W
om

en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

W
HF

S C
om

mu
nit
y V

olu
nte

eri
ng
 In
itia

tiv
e 

Th
ird
 Se

cto
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

20
,32

5 
 To

tal
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t (6

 ite
ms

) 
10
0,1

24
 

  Yo
uth

 W
or
k  

 Al
ph
a G

rov
e C

om
mu

nit
y T

rus
t 

Alp
ha
 G
rov

e Y
ou
th 
Clu

b 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

10
,00

0 
 Ba

ng
lad

es
h Y

ou
th 
Mo

ve
me

nt 
BY

M 
- Y

ou
th 
Pr
oje

ct 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

6,0
00
 

 Ba
ng
lad

es
h Y

ou
th 
Mo

ve
me

nt 
Gi
rl's

 So
cia

l In
clu

sio
n P

roj
ec
t 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
10
,00

0 
 Bl
ac
k W

om
en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Su

pp
ort

 
Bla

ck
 W

om
en
's 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Fa

mi
ly 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
6,0

00
 

 
Yo

un
g S

om
ali
 Pe

op
le'
s A

cti
vit
ies

 
 Bo

un
da
ry 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Sc

ho
ol 

BC
S Y

ou
th 
Pr
oje

ct 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

4,0
00
 

 Ch
ine

se
 As

so
cia

tio
n o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Ch

ine
se
 Yo

uth
 C
lub

 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

2,7
00
 

 Cu
bit
t T

ow
n Y

ou
th 
Pr
oje

ct 
Cu

bb
it T

ow
n Y

ou
th 
Pr
oje

ct 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

5,0
00
 

 Da
'wa

tul
 Is
lam

 U
K a

nd
 Ei
re 

W
ee
ke
nd
 Yo

uth
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t S

ch
em

e 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

3,0
00
 

 
(W

YD
S)
 

 
15
 

Page 45



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 Da
ne
for

d T
rus

t 
Pr
om

oti
ng
 th
e G

lob
al 
Dim

en
sio

n i
n e

du
ca
tio
n 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

3,0
00
 

 
an
d y

ou
th 
an
d c

om
mu

nit
y w

ork
 in
 th
e L

on
do
n 

 
Bo

rou
gh
 of
 To

we
r H

am
let
s 

 Ea
st 
Lo
nd
on
 So

ma
li Y

ou
th 
an
d W

elf
are

 
Yo

un
g S

om
ali
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t P

roj
ec
t 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
9,0

00
 

 Ce
ntr

e 
 Ea

st 
Lo
nd
on
 So

ma
li Y

ou
th 
an
d W

elf
are

 
SW

AT
 (S

om
ali
 W

om
en
's 
Ac

tiv
itie

s T
ea
m)
 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
6,0

00
 

 Ce
ntr

e 
 

 EL
MV

 Sh
ad
we

ll B
as
in 
Pr
oje

ct 
Ad

ve
ntu

re 
& C

ha
lle
ng
e 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
7,0

00
 

 EL
T B

ap
tis
t C

hu
rch

 
13
-19

s Y
ou
th 
Clu

b &
 Yo

un
g W

om
en
's 
Pr
oje

ctY
ou
th 
W
ork

 
6,0

00
 

 En
sig

n Y
ou
th 
Clu

b 
En

sig
n Y

ou
th 
Clu

b 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

7,0
00
 

 He
ad
lin
ers

 (U
K)
 

Cr
ea
tin
g F

utu
res

 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

10
,00

0 
 Ki
ng
sle

y H
all
 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 Li
mi
ted

 
Kin

gs
ley

 H
all
 Yo

uth
 Fo

cu
s 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
6,0

00
 

 Ki
pp
er 

Pr
oje

ct 
Th

e K
ipp

er 
Pr
oje

ct:
 Le

arn
ing

 Se
rvi
ce
 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
8,0

00
 

 Le
yto

n O
rie
nt 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Sp

ort
s P

rog
ram

me
 S

po
rt a

nd
 Le

arn
ing

 su
pp
ort

 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

10
,00

0 
 Lo

nd
on
 Bo

rou
gh
 of
 Ba

rki
ng
 an

d D
ag
en
ha
m 

Th
am

es
 G
ate

wa
y S

ch
ola

rsh
ip 
an
d Y

ou
th 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
10
,00

0 
 (T
ha
me

s G
ate

wa
y L

on
do
n P

art
ne
rsh

ip)
 

En
ga
ge
me

nt 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

 Ne
w 
Av

en
ue
s Y

ou
th 
an
d C

om
mu

nit
y P

roj
ec
t 
Cr
ea
tin
g o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

lea
de
rsh

ip 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

7,0
00
 

 Ne
wlo

n F
us
ion

 
Ea

st 
En

d Y
ou
th 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
6,0

00
 

 Po
pla

r B
oy
s a

nd
 G
irls

 C
lub

 
Po

pla
r B

oy
s a

nd
 G
irls

 C
lub

 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

6,0
00
 

 So
ma

li I
nte

gra
tio
n T

ea
m 
(S
IT)

 
So

ma
li G

irls
 Yo

uth
 Pr

oje
ct 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
7,0

00
 

 So
ma

li P
are

nts
 an

d C
hil
dre

n's
 Pl

ay
 

Bo
y's

 Yo
uth

 C
lub

 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

6,0
00
 

 As
so
cia

tio
n 

 St
 H
ild
a's

 Ea
st 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 
St 

Hil
da
's 
Ea

st 
Co

mm
un
ity
 C
en
tre

 In
no
va
tio
n 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
10
,00

0 
 

Ce
ntr

e Y
ou
th 
Hu

b. 
 St
 Pe

ter
's 
Co

mm
un
ity
 an

d A
dv
ice

 C
en
tre

 
Ba

ng
lad

es
hi 
Gi
rls
 Pe

er 
Ed

uc
ati
on
 & 

Yo
uth

 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

7,0
00
 

 
Clu

b 

 
16
 

Page 46



 Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 N
am

e 
Pr
oje

ct 
Tit

le 
Fu

nd
 

Aw
ard

ed
 

 St
ep
 Fo

rw
ard

 
Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

s C
ou
ns
ell
ing

 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

21
,00

0 
 St
iffo

rd 
TJ
RS

 C
om

mu
nit
y C

en
tre

 
Sti
ffo
rd 

Gi
rls
 Pr

oje
ct 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
10
,00

0 
 St
ree

ts 
Of
 G
row

th 
Tra

ns
itio

n i
nto

 C
are

ers
 (T

IC
) 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
5,0

00
 

 Th
e M

etr
o C

en
tre

 Lt
d 

LG
BT

Q 
Me

tro
 Yo

uth
 Ac

cre
dit
ati
on
 an

d 
Yo

uth
 W

ork
 

11
,00

0 
 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n (

MY
AP

)P
roj
ec
t 

 W
ad
aji
r S

om
ali
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

W
ad
aji
r S

om
ali
 Yo

uth
 D
rop

 -In
 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
6,0

00
 

 Xs
e A

ca
de
my

 
Co

re 
Gr
ou
p P

rog
ram

me
 

Yo
uth

 W
ork

 
4,0

00
 

 To
tal

 Yo
uth

 W
or
k (

32
 ite

ms
) 

23
4,7

00
 

  G
ran

d T
ota

ls 
(27

2 i
tem

s) 
3,7

99
,62

2 

 
17
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe

nd
ix 
2 –

 Fu
ll T

ab
le 
of 
Fe

ed
ba
ck
 an

d P
rop

os
ed
 A
cti
on
 

 If a
cc
ep
ted

 by
 th
e G

ran
ts 
Pa

ne
l th

is 
wil

l b
e d

ev
elo

pe
d i
nto

 a 
ful
l a
cti
on
 pl
an
 be

for
e b

ein
g s

ub
mi
tte
d t
o C

ab
ine

t. 
 Ide

nti
fie

d i
n r

ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

Th
em

e 1
 Id

en
tifi

ed
 is
su

es
 w
ith

 th
e p

ro
ce
ss
 

Gr
ou
ps
 un

ab
le 
to 

ac
ce
ss
 fu
nd
s a

s t
he
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 se

rvi
ce
 

sp
ec
ific

ati
on
s w

ere
 to
o 

co
mp

lex
 no

t w
ritt
en
 in
 

an
 ac

ce
ss
ibl
e f
orm

 at
. 

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Of
fic
ers

 
 

Gr
an
t w

ork
ing

 pa
rty
 (o

ne
 gr

an
t o
ffic

er 
fro

m 
ea
ch
 di
rec

tor
ate

) to
 re

vie
w 
an
d s

im
pli
fy 

sp
ec
ific

ati
on
s w

ere
 w
e c

an
.   

All
 gr

an
t d
oc
um

en
ts 
to 
be
 te
ste

d w
ith
 

po
ten

tia
l a
pp
lica

nts
. 

Int
rod

uc
tio
n o

f s
ma

ll g
ran

ts 
po
t (i
f 

ap
pro

ve
d) 

wil
l o
pe
n a

cc
es
s t
o f
un
ds
 to
 ne

w 
an
d s

ma
lle
r g

rou
ps
 w
ho
 ne

ed
 to
 gr

ow
 an

d 
to 
su
pp
ort

 ke
y o

rga
nis

ati
on
s. 

 
Le
ss
 co

ntr
ol 
on
 se

rvi
ce
s w

e 
fun

d. 
Im
pro

ve
d o

utc
om

es
 m
ee
tin
g 

res
ide

nts
’ n
ee
ds
. 

Sm
all
er 

gro
up
s f
un
de
d a

nd
 

su
pp
ort

ed
 to
 de

ve
lop

. 

On
lin
e a

pp
lica

tio
n f
orm

 
qu
es
tio
ns
 an

d 
gu
ide

lin
es
 di
d n

ot 
an
tic
ipa

te 
all
 de

tai
ls 

ne
ed
ed
 fro

m 
gro

up
s t
o 

en
su
re 

the
y a

ns
we

red
 

qu
es
tio
ns
 ap

pro
pri
ate

ly.
 

Of
fic
ers

 
Gr
an
t w

ork
ing

 pa
rty
 (o

ne
 gr

an
t o
ffic

er 
fro

m 
ea
ch
 di
rec

tor
ate

) to
 re

vie
w 
an
d r

efi
ne
 

qu
es
tio
ns
 on

 on
lin
e f
orm

 to
 im

pro
ve
 lin

ks
 

wit
h s

co
rin
g s

ys
tem

. 

 
Mo

re 
eli
gib

le 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

be
ing

 tu
rne

d d
ow

n d
ue
 to
 

bu
dg
et 
co
ns
tra

int
s. 

Inc
rea

se
d u

nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f 

wh
at 
inf
orm

ati
on
 ne

ed
s t
o b

e 
pro

vid
ed
 to
 sc

ore
 w
ell
 in
 an

 
ap
pli
ca
tio
n. 

  
Ap

pli
ca
nt 
gro

up
s d

idn
’t 

un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 sc

ori
ng
 

pro
ce
ss
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Of
fic
ers

 
Ind

ica
tio
n o

f s
co
res

 to
 be

 in
clu

din
g i
n 

gu
ida

nc
e n

ote
s i
n l
ine

 w
ith
 be

st 
pra

cti
ce
 of
 

oth
er 

fun
de
rs 
sh
ou
ld 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

ap
pro

ac
h b

e m
ain

tai
ne
d 

Le
ad
 by

 EH
 

By
 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
09
 

Mo
re 

eli
gib

le 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

be
ing

 tu
rne

d d
ow

n d
ue
 to
 

bu
dg
et 
co
ns
tra

int
s. 

Inc
rea

se
d u

nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f 

im
pro

ve
d s

co
rin
g s

ys
tem

. 

Page 49



Ide
nti

fie
d i

n r
ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

On
lin
e a

pp
lica

tio
n 

pro
ce
ss
 ne

ed
s 

de
ve
lop

ing
 to
 re

dre
ss
 

iss
ue
s i
de
nti
fie
d t
hro

ug
h 

ca
lls 

to 
off
ice

rs 
du
rin
g 

the
 pr

oc
es
s. 

Of
fic
ers

 
De

ve
lop

 th
e a

dd
ing

 do
cu
me

nts
 pa

ge
 so

 
tha

t w
e u

se
 a 
se
cti
on
 fo
r e

ac
h d

oc
um

en
t 

req
uir
ed
 ra

the
r th

an
 dr

op
 do

wn
 m
en
u. 

Gr
an
t o
ffic

er 
wo

rki
ng
 pa

rty
  to

 de
ve
lop

 an
d 

rev
iew

 gu
ida

nc
e f
or 

gro
up
s t
o b

e e
xte

nd
ed
 

in 
res

po
ns
e t
o p

rob
lem

s i
de
nti
fie
d t
his

 ye
ar 

 
Le
ga
l S

tat
us
 dr

op
 do

wn
 m
en
u t
o b

e 
am

en
de
d s

o t
ha
t g
rou

ps
 ca

n c
ho
os
e m

ore
 

tha
n o

ne
 st
atu

s (
eg
. R

eg
ist
ere

d c
ha
rity

 an
d 

co
mp

an
y l
im
ite
d b

y g
ua
ran

tee
). 

Po
p u

p g
uid

an
ce
 no

tes
 th
at 
gro

up
s c

an
 

ac
ce
ss
 on

 ea
ch
 pa

ge
 re

lev
an
t to

 se
cti
on
 

rat
he
r th

an
 se

pa
rat

e d
oc
um

en
t 

Clo
sin

g d
ate

 to
 be

 in
clu

de
d m

ore
 of
ten

 in
 

gu
ida

nc
e a

nd
 on

lin
e f
orm

.  
En

su
re 

tha
t s
ma

ll o
rga

nis
ati
on
s a

re 
giv

en
 

wh
ate

ve
r s
up
po
rt t

he
y n

ee
d t
o a

pp
ly 

 
Mo

re 
eli
gib

le 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

be
ing

 tu
rne

d d
ow

n d
ue
 to
 

bu
dg
et 
co
ns
tra

int
s. 

Iss
ue
s s

olv
ed
 to
 en

ab
le 

mo
re 

gro
up
s a

cc
es
s 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n p

roc
es
s. 

   

Im
po
rta

nc
e o

f c
ore

 
fun

din
g f
or 

sm
all
er 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r O
rga

nis
ati
on
s 

ca
nn
ot 
be
 

un
de
res

tim
ate

d. 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Gr
ea
ter

 cl
ari
ty 
ab
ou
t re

so
urc

es
 av

ail
ab
le 
by
 

giv
ing

 an
 in
dic

ati
on
 of
 gr

an
t le

ve
ls 
for

 
ac
tiv
itie

s s
o t
ha
t g
rou

ps
 ar

e a
wa

re 
of 
siz

e 
of 
pro

jec
ts 
to 
ap
ply

 fo
r. 

To
 m
ak
e s

ure
 th
at 
the

 co
sts

 of
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 a 

se
rvi
ce
, u
nd
er 

a s
erv

ice
 ag

ree
me

nt,
 re

fle
ct 

an
 un

de
rst
an
din

g o
f th

e f
ull
 co

st 
of 
de
live

ry,
 

inc
lud

ing
 an

y r
ele

va
nt 
pa
rt o

f th
e o

ve
rhe

ad
 

co
sts

. 

 
Fe

we
r a

pp
lica

nts
 re

ce
ive

 
ma

ins
tre

am
 gr

an
t fu

nd
ing

.  
Fu

nd
ed
 gr

ou
ps
 m
ore

 
su
sta

ina
ble

, s
up
po
rtin

g a
 

thr
ivin

g t
hir
d s

ec
tor

. 

Th
em

e 2
 R
es
ult

s o
f th

e p
ro
ce
ss
. 

Page 50



Ide
nti

fie
d i

n r
ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

Th
at 
sm

all
er 

loc
al 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 w
ere

 
dis

ad
va
nta

ge
 of
 th
e 

pro
ce
ss
 re

su
ltin

g i
n 

mo
re 

fun
din

g g
oin

g t
o 

lar
ge
r n

ati
on
al 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
. 

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Co

ns
ide

r p
rov

idi
ng
 a 
fle
xib

le 
sm

all
 gr

an
ts 

fun
din

g p
ot 
(N
.B.

 C
om

mu
nit
y C

he
st 

pro
po
se
d i
n t
he
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r S

tra
teg

y 
su
bje

ct 
to 
fun

din
g) 

Gr
an
t w

ork
ing

 pa
rty
 (o

ne
 gr

an
t o
ffic

er 
fro

m 
ea
ch
 di
rec

tor
ate

) to
 re

vie
w 
an
d r

efi
ne
 

sc
ori
ng
 m
atr

ix.
 

De
ve
lop

 gr
an
t e
lig
ibi
lity

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t o
nly

 
loc

all
y b

as
ed
 gr

ou
ps
 ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 

ma
ins

tre
am

 gr
an
t fu

nd
s. 

To
 st
ren

gth
en
 ab

ility
 of
 th
e s

co
rin
g a

nd
 

mo
de
rat

ion
 pr

oc
es
s t
o e

ns
ure

 sp
ec
ial
ist
 

gro
up
s t
ha
t re

pre
se
nt 
eq
ua
lity

 gr
ou
ps
 ga

in 
fun

ds
. 

To
 be

 ag
ree

d i
n p

rio
riti
es
 an

d a
rra

ng
em

en
t 

rep
ort

 to
 C
ab
ine

t. 

Le
ad
 by

 EH
 

 By
 O
cto

be
r 

20
09
 

 

Sm
all
er 

loc
al 
gro

up
s m

ay
 

no
t b
e t
he
 be

st 
ch
oic

e f
or 

so
me

 de
live

ry.
 

Sm
all
er 

loc
al 
gro

up
s 

su
pp
ort

ed
 to
 be

 su
sta

ina
ble

.  
Lo
ca
l N

I7 
ind

ica
tor

 
im
pro

ve
d. 

Fu
nd
ed
 gr

ou
ps
 fro

m 
all
 

eq
ua
lity

 st
ran

ds
 va

lue
d a

nd
 

ac
ce
ss
 fu
nd
s. 

Gr
ou
ps
 un

ab
le 
to 

ac
ce
ss
 fu
nd
s a

s t
he
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 se

rvi
ce
 

sp
ec
ific

ati
on
s 

pre
sc
rib
ed
 w
ork

 
na
rro

wly
, a
nd
 th
eir
 

se
rvi
ce
s d

o n
ot 
fit 
int
o 

the
se
 bu

t d
o f
it i
nto

 
Co

un
cil 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 an
d i
mp

rov
ing

 
the

 qu
ali
ty 
an
d l
ife
 of
 

res
ide

nts
. 

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r  
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 pr
ior
itie

s t
o b

e t
he
me

d 
thr

ou
gh
 al
l s
pe
cif
ica

tio
ns
 in
 th
e w

ay
 

eq
ua
lity

 is
su
es
 ar

e. 
As

 fu
nd
ing

 st
rea

ms
 be

co
me

 av
ail
ab
le 
to 

rev
iew

 pr
ior
itie

s t
o e

ns
ure

 al
l k
ey
 co

un
cil 

pri
ori
tie
s s

up
po
rte

d. 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 to
 be

 co
ns
ide

red
 as

 
the

 fo
cu
s f
or 

a s
pe
cif
ic 
fun

din
g s

tre
am

 

Le
ad
 by

  
Le
ss
 re

so
urc

e a
llo
ca
tio
n f
or 

fun
din

g s
tre

am
s. 

Ke
y p

rio
riti
es
 re

fle
cte

d i
n 

gra
nt 
fun

de
d p

rov
isio

n. 

Page 51



Ide
nti

fie
d i

n r
ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

Th
em

e 3
 -  

Ac
co

un
tab

ilit
y a

nd
 tr
an

sp
are

nc
y 

La
ck
 of
 cl
ari
ty 
ab
ou
t th

e 
rat

ion
ale

 fo
r s
co
rin
g a

nd
 

mo
de
rat

ion
 pr

oc
es
s. 

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Of
fic
ers

 
 

En
su
re 

tha
t th

ere
 is
 cl
ari
ty 
ab
ou
t th

e 
ap
pro

ac
h f
or 

de
ter

mi
nin

g f
un
din

g 
all
oc
ati
on
s. 
 

On
 th
e b

as
is 
of 
the

 ag
ree

d a
pp
roa

ch
, 

de
ve
lop

 tra
ini
ng
 an

d w
ritt
en
 gu

ida
nc
e f
or 

all
 

inv
olv

ed
 to
 im

pro
ve
 th
e c

on
sis

ten
cy
 of
 

ap
pro

ac
h  

To
 be

 ag
ree

d i
n p

rio
riti
es
 an

d a
rra

ng
em

en
t 

rep
ort

 to
 C
ab
ine

t. 

Le
ad
 by

 EH
 

 By
 (w

he
n i
s 

rep
ort

 go
ing

 
up
?) 

 

 

La
ck
 of
 in
vo
lve

me
nt 
of 

the
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r in

 th
e 

pro
ce
ss
. 

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Th

em
ati
c f
oc
us
 gr

ou
ps
 w
he
n d

ev
elo

pin
g 

pri
ori
tie
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on
s. 

If C
VS

 in
 pl
ac
e i
nv
olv

e i
n a

gre
ein

g s
co
rin
g 

an
d m

od
era

tio
n f
ram

e w
ork

. 
Als

o i
nv
olv

ing
 th
em

 in
 th
e a

ctu
al 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
an
d m

od
era

tio
n p

roc
es
s. 

 
Co

nfl
ict
 of
 in
ter

es
t fo

r g
rou

ps
 

inv
olv

ed
 in
 al
loc

ati
on
 an

d 
als

o a
pp
lyin

g a
ga
ins

t o
the

r 
gro

up
s f
or 

lim
ite
d b

ud
ge
ts.
 

Gr
ea
ter

 co
nfi
de
nc
e i
n t
he
 

pro
ce
ss
. 

Page 52



Ide
nti

fie
d i

n r
ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

La
ck
 of
 pr

oa
cti
ve
 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
n w

ith
 

gro
up
s b

etw
ee
n 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n d

ea
dli
ne
 an

d 
pu
bli
c d

ec
isio

n m
ak
ing

 
sta

ge
. 

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Of
fic
ers

 

On
go
ing

 tra
ini
ng
 an

d g
uid

an
ce
 pr

ov
ide

d t
o 

off
ice

rs 
inc

lud
ing

 as
se
ss
ing

, m
od
era

tio
n 

an
d e

ng
ag
ing

 w
ith
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
. 

Ma
ins

tre
am

 gr
an
t o
ffic

ers
 m
ee
tin
gs
 ta
ke
 

pla
ce
 qu

art
erl
y t
o e

ns
ure

 co
ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d 
cle

ar 
un
de
rst
an
din

g o
n d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f 

pro
ce
ss
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s a
nd
 to
 co

-
ord

ina
te 
an
d p

lan
 th
e p

roc
es
s 

Te
mp

lat
e e

ma
ils 

an
d l
ett
ers

 to
 be

 se
nt 
ou
t 

du
rin
g p

roc
es
s t
o k

ee
p a

pp
lica

nts
 in
for

me
d 

the
 st
ag
e o

f p
roc

es
s. 
 

W
eb
sit
e u

pd
ate

d t
o i
nfo

rm
 gr

ou
ps
 of
 st
ag
e 

of 
pro

ce
ss
. 

 
Le
ad
 to
 in
cre

as
e o

f g
rou

ps
 

lob
by
ing

 C
ou
nc
illo

rs.
 

Gr
ou
ps
 le
ss
 fru

str
ate

d a
bo
ut 

len
gth

 of
 tim

e w
ait
ing

 fo
r 

inf
orm

ati
on
. 

Le
ss
 ca

lls 
to 
off
ice

rs 
an
d 

me
mb

ers
. 

Th
em

e 4
 – 
Le

ve
l o

f s
up

po
rt 
av
ail
ab

le 
wh

en
 ap

ply
ing

 fo
r g

ran
ts.

 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r g

rou
ps
 

ne
ed
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 
pro

fes
sio

na
l 

ind
ep
en
de
nt 
he
lp 
an
d 

su
pp
ort

 to
 ap

ply
 fo
r 

gra
nts

. 

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Of
fic
ers

 
 

• 
En

ab
le 
su
pp
ort

 to
 ta
rge

ted
 gr

ou
ps
 in
 

ap
ply

ing
 th
rou

gh
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 fu
nd
ed
 

ad
vic

e f
rom

 an
 in
de
pe
nd
en
t th

ird
 se

cto
r 

bo
dy
 no

t c
om

pe
tin
g f
or 

sa
me

 fu
nd
s. 

• 
De

tai
ls 
of 
tra

ini
ng
 an

d s
up
po
rt p

rov
ide

d 
for

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
s i
n t
he
 pr

ep
ara

tio
n o

f 
bid

din
g a

pp
lica

tio
ns
 to
 be

 in
clu

de
d i
n 

ov
erv

iew
 re

po
rts
 fo
r th

e g
ran

ts 
pro

ce
ss
. 

 

 
Lim

ite
d r

es
ou
rce

s t
o e

ng
ag
e 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
su
pp
ort

. 
Ne

w 
CV

S, 
if a

pp
rov

ed
, c
ou
ld 

pro
vid

e t
his

 se
rvi
ce
 as

 pa
rt 

of 
de
live

ry 
for

 ou
r fu

nd
ed
 

su
pp
ort

. 

Page 53



Ide
nti

fie
d i

n r
ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

So
me

 gr
ou
ps
 

ex
pe
rie
nc
ed
 pr

ob
lem

s i
n 

ap
ply

ing
 be

ca
us
e o

f th
e 

ne
w 
on
lin
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
.   

  

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Of
fic
ers

 

All
 G
ran

t O
ffic

ers
 to
 be

 av
ail
ab
le 
on
 cl
os
ing

 
da
y t
o g

ive
 ph

on
e a

dv
ice

.   
Co

nti
nu
ed
 IT

 su
pp
ort

, m
en
tor

ing
 an

d 
tra

ini
ng
 pr

ov
ide

d. 
To

 ho
ld 
wo

rks
ho
ps
 fo
r 

tar
ge
ted

 gr
ou
ps
 in
clu

din
g t
ho
se
: 

• 
wh

o h
av
e n

ot 
ap
pli
ed
 on

 lin
e b

efo
re 

• 
pre

vio
us
ly 
fun

de
d t
ha
t fa

ile
d t
o a

pp
ly 

or 
we

re 
un
su
cc
es
sfu

l in
 th
eir
 

20
09
/10

 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

• 
ca
llin

g a
bo
ut 
dif
fic
ult
ies

 
• 

fro
m 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 th
at 
su
pp
ort

 
eq
ua
lity

 gr
ou
ps
 th
at 
de
mo

ns
tra

te 
lim

ite
d a

cc
es
s t
o f
un
ds
. 

 
Mo

re 
eli
gib

le 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

be
ing

 tu
rne

d d
ow

n d
ue
 to
 

bu
dg
et 
co
ns
tra

int
s. 

 

Page 54



Ide
nti

fie
d i

n r
ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

So
me

 of
 th
e s

ma
lle
r 

gro
up
s d

id 
no
t h
av
e 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 th
e 

tec
hn
olo

gy
 ne

ed
ed
 to
 

ap
ply

 on
 lin

e a
nd
, 

be
ca
us
e o

f th
is,
 w
ere

 at
 

a d
isa

dv
an
tag

e 

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Of
fic
ers

 
 

• 
En

ab
le 
su
pp
ort

 to
 ta
rge

ted
 gr

ou
ps
 in
 

ap
ply

ing
 th
rou

gh
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 fu
nd
ed
 IT

 
su
pp
ort

 se
rvi
ce
s. 

• 
En

ab
le 
gro

up
s w

ith
 lim

ite
d I
T s

ys
tem

s t
o 

se
nd
 in
 su

pp
ort

ing
 do

cu
me

nts
 ot
he
r 

wa
ys
 be

for
e d

ea
dli
ne
. (t

o b
e i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 

gu
ida

nc
e) 

• 
Cu

t o
ff o

f s
ys
tem

 to
 be

 la
ter

 th
an
 cl
os
ing

 
da
te/
tim

e t
o s

up
po
rt g

rou
ps
 st
rug

gli
ng
 

wit
h s

en
din

g i
n l
as
t m

inu
te 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
.  

Ho
we

ve
r, o

nc
e c

los
ed
 it 
sh
ou
ld 
no
t b
e 

op
en
ed
. 

• 
If g

rou
ps
 ha

ve
 fa
ile
d t
o a

tta
ch
 

do
cu
me

nts
 to
 in
for

m 
the

m 
an
d g

ive
 

the
m 
a d

ea
dli
ne
 to
 su

bm
it a

fte
r 

de
ad
lin
e. 

 
Lim

ite
d r

es
ou
rce

s t
o e

ng
ag
e 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
su
pp
ort

. 
Ne

w 
CV

S, 
if a

pp
rov

ed
, c
ou
ld 

pro
vid

e t
his

 se
rvi
ce
 as

 pa
rt 

of 
de
live

ry 
for

 ou
r fu

nd
ed
 

su
pp
ort

. 

Th
em

e 5
 – 
Ad

ve
rti
sin

g a
nd

 Pu
bli

cit
y 

On
go
ing

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
to 
we

bs
ite
 in
for

ma
tio
n 

an
d d

oc
um

en
ts 
ne
ed
 to
 

inc
rea

se
 di
rec

tor
ate

 
co
ntr

ol.
 

Of
fic
ers

 
Sp

ec
ific

ati
on
s t
o h

av
e a

 co
ntr

oll
ed
 pr

oc
es
s 

for
 si
gn
 of
f in

 di
rec

tor
ate

s. 
W
eb
sit
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 to
 be

 ap
pro

ve
d b

y ?
 

pri
or 

to 
inc

lus
ion

. 

  
Inc

rea
se
d p

res
su
re 

on
 tig

ht 
tim

es
 sc

ale
s. 

Co
ntr

ol 
in 
dir
ec
tor

ate
s. 

 

Page 55



Ide
nti

fie
d i

n r
ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

Sm
all
 gr

ou
ps
 w
ith
 

lim
ite
d k

no
wle

dg
e l
oc
al 

gra
nt 
pro

ce
ss
 fa
il t
o 

he
ar 

ab
ou
t a
pp
lica

tio
n 

pro
ce
ss
. 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
 

Us
e e

xis
tin
g n

etw
ork

s t
o i
nfo

rm
 gr

ou
ps
 of
 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n r

ou
nd
. 

 
Po

ste
rs 
at 
co
mm

un
ity
 ce

ntr
es
 to
 in
su
re 

sm
all
 gr

ou
ps
 m
ee
tin
g a

t th
eir
 pr

em
ise

s a
re 

inf
orm

ed
 of
 fu
nd
ing

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

. 
 

Co
mm

un
ica

te 
thr

ou
gh
 de

dic
ate

d t
hir
d 

se
cto

r p
rov

ide
r d

ay
s. 
 

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
ne
w 
CV

S (
if r
es
ou
rce

s 
ap
pro

ve
d) 

wil
l e
na
ble

 en
ha
nc
ed
 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
n b

etw
ee
n t
he
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r 

an
d t
he
 C
ou
nc
il. 

 
Mo

re 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 an

d 
inc

rea
se
d e

xp
ec
tat
ion

 of
 

fun
din

g f
rom

 gr
ou
ps
 fro

m 
lim

ite
d p

ot.
 

 Inc
rea

se
 of
 fu
nd
ing

 to
 

sm
all
er 

loc
al 
gro

up
s. 

 

Th
em

e 6
 – 
Tim

es
ca
les

 of
 pr

oc
es
s. 

Lo
ng
er 

tim
e b

etw
ee
n 

ad
ve
rt a

nd
 ap

pli
ca
tio
n 

su
bm

iss
ion

 re
qu
ire
d. 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Tim

es
ca
les

 fo
r c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 an

d g
ran

t 
aid

 to
 be

 an
no
un
ce
d i
n g

oo
d t
im
e w

ith
 an

 
ea
rlie

r a
dv
ert

 in
 Ea

st 
En

d L
ife
 fo
llo
we

d u
p 

by
 on

e n
ea
rer

 th
e c

los
ing

 da
te.
 

Mo
re 

gu
ida

nc
e o

n w
eb
sit
e t
o e

nc
ou
rag

e 
gro

up
s t
o l
oo
k a

t a
pp
lica

tio
n f
orm

s e
arl
ier
. 

 
Ap

pli
ca
nts

 w
ill c

on
tin
ue
 to
 

lea
ve
 lo
ok
ing

 at
 th
e 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n f
orm

 un
til 
to 
lat
e 

to 
pro

du
ce
 an

sw
ers

 an
d 

do
cu
me

nts
 re

qu
ire
d a

s w
ell
 

as
 ac

ce
ss
 ad

eq
ua
te 
su
pp
ort

.  
Im
pro

ve
d o

pp
ort

un
ity
 fo
r 

gro
up
s t
o d

ev
elo

p p
roc

es
se
s 

an
d d

oc
um

en
ts 
req

uir
ed
. 

Page 56



Ide
nti

fie
d i

n r
ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

No
t e
no
ug
h n

oti
ce
 

pro
vid

ed
 w
he
re 

fun
din

g 
is 
to 
be
 re

du
ce
d o

r 
ter

mi
na
ted

. 
De

cis
ion

s m
ad
e t
oo
 la
te 

to 
all
ow

 ap
pli
ca
nt 

org
an
isa

tio
n a

pp
rop

ria
te 

tim
e t
o d

o b
ud
ge
tin
g 

an
d r

es
ou
rce

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt.
  L
ate

 
ind

ica
tio
ns
 m
ea
ns
 

ha
vin

g t
o m

ak
e 

red
un
da
nc
y n

oti
ce
s 

ev
en
 w
he
n u

nn
ec
es
sa
ry 

res
ult
ing

 in
 lo
w 
mo

ral
 of
 

sta
ff. 
 

Th
ird
 se

cto
r  

Br
ing

 fo
rw
ard

 ap
pli
ca
tio
n p

roc
es
s a

nd
 

de
cis

ion
 m
ak
ing

 pr
oc
es
s. 

To
 co

nfi
rm

 fu
nd
ing

 am
ou
nts

 th
ree

 m
on
ths

 
be
for

e t
he
 st
art

 of
 pr

oje
cts

, if
 po

ss
ibl
e. 

 
Aw

ard
s w

ill n
ee
d t
o b

e m
ad
e 

ag
ain

st 
ind

ica
tiv
e b

ud
ge
ts 

an
d g

rou
ps
 w
ill n

ee
d t
o 

giv
en
 pr

ov
isio

na
l in

dic
ati
on
 

of 
all
oc
ati
on
 pr

ior
 to
 bu

dg
et 

ap
pro

va
l. 

Su
pp
ort

s T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on
s t
o m

an
ag
e 

inc
lud

ing
 m
ak
ing

 
red

un
da
nc
ies

 as
 re

su
lt o

f 
fun

din
g c

om
ing

 to
 an

 en
d. 

Eff
icie

nc
y i
n r

ec
og
nis

ing
 an

d 
res

po
nd
ing

 to
 fu
tur

e 
ch
all
en
ge
s i
n r

ela
tio
n t
o 

res
ou
rce

s. 
Th

em
e  
7 –

 Fe
ed

ba
ck
, A

pp
ea
ls 
an

d E
nq

uir
ies

 
La
ck
 of
 st
rat

eg
ic 

ad
vo
ca
cy
 an

d 
rep

res
en
tat
ion

 th
rou

gh
 

the
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d 
ap
pli
ca
tio
n p

roc
es
s 

me
an
t g
rou

ps
 fe
lt 

co
nc
ern

ed
 th
at 
en
qu
ire
s 

wo
uld

 an
d d

id 
lea

d t
o 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 be

ing
 

tur
ne
d d

ow
n. 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
ne
w 
CV

S (
if r
es
ou
rce

s 
ap
pro

ve
d) 

wil
l e
na
ble

 vo
ice

 of
 th
ird
 se

cto
r 

at 
a s

tra
teg

ic 
lev

el.
 

 
Inc

rea
se
 tim

e o
f p
roc

es
s a

nd
 

pro
ce
du
re 

de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 

Inc
rea

se
d c

on
fid
en
ce
 in
 th
e 

pro
ce
ss
. 

 

Page 57



Ide
nti

fie
d i

n r
ev
iew

 
So

ur
ce
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 ac
tio

n 
Wh

o/W
he

n 
Ri
sk
s -

 Po
sit

ive
s 

Inc
rea

se
 in
 en

qu
irie

s 
fro

m 
gro

up
s t
ha
t w

ere
 

no
t e
lig
ibl
e f
or 

gra
nts

.  
Me

mb
ers

 
Th

ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Of
fic
ers

 
 

If a
n o

rga
nis

ati
on
 do

es
 no

t p
rov

ide
 

ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t it
 m
ee
ts 
gra

nt 
eli
gib

ility
 

cri
ter

ia 
the

 of
fic
er 

inf
orm

s t
he
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 

in 
wr
itin

g, 
sta

tin
g c

lea
rly
 w
hy
 th
e a

pp
lica

tio
n 

ha
s b

ee
n r

eje
cte

d a
s s

oo
n a

s k
no
wn

 ra
the

r 
tha

n w
ait
ing

 fo
r M

arc
h. 

Of
fer

 of
 in
div

idu
al 
fee

db
ac
k t
o g

rou
ps
 w
ho
 

are
 un

sa
tis
fie
d w

ith
 ou

tco
me

. 
Th

e a
pp
lica

tio
n i
s w

ith
dra

wn
 fo
rm

 th
e 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
pro

ce
du
re 

an
d r

ep
ort

 at
 th
is 

sta
ge
. 

 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on
s w

ill s
till 

be
 

un
sa
tis
fie
d w

ith
 re

sp
on
se
. 

 Or
ga
nis

ati
on
s p

rov
ide

d w
ith
 

cle
ar 

rea
so
ns
 fo
r a

ny
 

de
cis

ion
s t
ak
en
 th
at 
en
ab
le 

the
 gr

ou
p t
o u

nd
ers

tan
d a

nd
 

de
ve
lop

 to
 be

 m
ore

 
su
cc
es
sfu

l in
 ap

pli
ca
tio
n 

pro
ce
ss
. 

Inc
rea

se
 in
 qu

eri
es
 fro

m 
lon

g s
tan

din
g 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
. 

Me
mb

ers
 

Th
ird
 

Se
cto

r 
Of
fic
ers

 

Co
ntr

oll
ed
 ap

pe
als

 pr
oc
es
s t
o l
im
it 

en
qu
irie

s w
ith
 cl
ari
ty 
ab
ou
t w

ho
 ca

n a
pp
ea
l 

an
d f
or 

wh
at 
rea

so
ns
. 

Th
e p

roc
es
s s

ho
uld

 pr
ov
ide

 gr
ou
ps
 th
e 

rig
ht 
to 
ha
ve
 th
e d

ec
isio

n o
f th

e G
ran

ts 
Pa

ne
l’s 

rev
iew

ed
 w
he
n f
un
din

g i
s n

ot 
aw

ard
ed
 or

 is
 si
gn
ific

an
tly
 re

du
ce
d t
o a

n 
org

an
isa

tio
n w

hic
h r

ec
eiv

ed
 an

 on
-go

ing
 

rev
en
ue
 gr

an
t (f

or 
sta

ffin
g a

nd
/or

 ru
nn
ing

 
co
sts

) in
 th
e p

rev
iou

s f
ina

nc
ial
 ye

ar.
 

 
Fu

nd
ing

 w
ill n

ee
d t
o b

e 
ret

ain
ed
 fo
r a

pp
ea
ls 
so
 

so
me

 al
loc

ati
on
 w
ill n

ee
d t
o 

be
 m
ad
e p

en
din

g a
pp
ea
ls 

an
d t
his

 w
ill d

ela
y o

utc
om

e 
for

 so
me

 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
. 

 Re
du
ce
d a

nd
 m
an
ag
ed
 

ap
pe
als

. 
  

Page 58


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	5.1 Update on the Youth Opportunity and Youth Capital Funds in Tower Hamlets (GP 03/0910)
	5.2 Review of Mainstream Grants Commissioning (GP 04/0910)
	MSG Commissioning Process - Grants Panel Report 15th Oct  2009 Appendix 1
	MSG Commissioning Process - Grants Panel Report 15th Oct  2009 Appendix 2 (2)


